
MEETING: OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE (ADULT SOCIAL CARE 
AND HEALTH)

DATE: Tuesday, 3rd September 2019

TIME: 6.30 p.m.

VENUE: Birkdale Room -  Southport Town Hall, Lord Street, Southport, PR8 
1DA

Member

Councillor

Substitute

Councillor
Cllr. Mhairi Doyle, M.B.E. (Chair)
Cllr. Diane Roscoe (Vice-Chair)
Cllr. Anthony Carr
Cllr. Linda Cluskey
Cllr. Christine Howard
Cllr. David Irving
Cllr. Terry Jones
Cllr. Greg Myers
Cllr. Dr. John Pugh
Cllr. Carran Waterfield
Brian Clark, Healthwatch
Roger Hutchings, Healthwatch

Cllr. Clare Carragher
Cllr. Sean Halsall
Cllr. Nina Killen
Cllr. Michael O'Brien
Cllr. Michael Roche
Cllr. Pat O'Hanlon
Cllr. Tony Brough
Cllr. Paul Tweed
Cllr. Iain Brodie - Browne
Cllr. Veronica Webster

COMMITTEE OFFICER: Debbie Campbell, Senior Democratic Services 
Officer

Telephone: 0151 934 2254
Fax: 0151 934 2034
E-mail: debbie.campbell@sefton.gov.uk

If you have any special needs that may require arrangements to 
facilitate your attendance at this meeting, please contact the 
Committee Officer named above, who will endeavour to assist.

We endeavour to provide a reasonable number of full agendas, including reports at 
the meeting.  If you wish to ensure that you have a copy to refer to at the meeting, 
please can you print off your own copy of the agenda pack prior to the meeting.

Public Document Pack



A G E N D A

1.  Apologies for Absence

2.  Declarations of Interest
Members are requested at a meeting where a disclosable 
pecuniary interest or personal interest arises, which is not 
already included in their Register of Members' Interests, to 
declare any interests that relate to an item on the agenda.

Where a Member discloses a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest, 
he/she must withdraw from the meeting room, including from 
the public gallery, during the whole consideration of any item 
of business in which he/she has an interest, except where 
he/she is permitted to remain as a result of a grant of a 
dispensation.

Where a Member discloses a personal interest he/she must 
seek advice from the Monitoring Officer or staff member 
representing the Monitoring Officer to determine whether the 
Member should withdraw from the meeting room, including 
from the public gallery, during the whole consideration of any 
item of business in which he/she has an interest or whether 
the Member can remain in the meeting or remain in the 
meeting and vote on the relevant decision.

3.  Minutes of the Previous Meeting (Pages 5 - 16)
Minutes of the meeting held on 25 June 2019.

4.  Southport and Ormskirk Hospital NHS Trust (Pages 17 - 
32)

Therese Patten, Deputy Chief Executive, to attend to give a 
presentation.

5.  Sefton Clinical Commissioning Groups - Update Report (Pages 33 - 
38)

Joint report of NHS South Sefton Clinical Commissioning 
Group and NHS Southport and Formby Clinical 
Commissioning Group.

6.  Sefton Clinical Commissioning Groups - Health Provider 
Performance Dashboard

(Pages 39 - 
46)

Joint report of NHS South Sefton Clinical Commissioning 
Group and NHS Southport and Formby Clinical 
Commissioning Group.

7.  Cabinet Member Reports (Pages 47 - 
66)

Report of the Chief Legal and Democratic Officer.



8.  Work Programme Key Decision Forward Plan (Pages 67 - 
80)

Report of the Chief Legal and Democratic Officer.



This page is intentionally left blank



THIS SET OF MINUTES IS NOT SUBJECT TO “CALL IN”.

1

OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 
(ADULT SOCIAL CARE AND HEALTH)

MEETING HELD AT THE TOWN HALL, BOOTLE
ON TUESDAY 25TH JUNE, 2019

PRESENT: Councillor Doyle (in the Chair)
Councillor Roscoe (Vice-Chair) 
Councillors Carr, Howard, Irving, Jones, Myers, 
Pugh and Waterfield

ALSO PRESENT: Mr. B. Clark, Healthwatch
Mr. R. Hutchings, Healthwatch
Councillor Moncur, Cabinet Member – Health and 
Wellbeing

1. INTRODUCTIONS 

The Chair welcomed everyone to the meeting and introductions took 
place.

2. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 

Apologies for absence were received from Councillors Cluskey and 
Cummins, Cabinet Member – Adult Social Care.

3. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

In accordance with Paragraph 9 of the Council’s Code of Conduct, the 
following declarations of personal interest were made and the Members 
concerned remained in the room during the consideration of the item:

 
Member Minute No. Nature of Interest

Councillor 
Roscoe

Minute No. 6 - 
Public Health 
Annual Report

She is an Administration and 
Support Officer for the British Lung 
Foundation;

Roger 
Hutchings, co-
opted member, 
Healthwatch

Minute No. 6 - 
Public Health 
Annual Report

He gave authorisation to air 
polluting processes at the docks 
under the Environmental 
Protection Act 1990, as the 
Council’s former Chief 
Environment and Consumer 
Officer.

Page 5

Agenda Item 3



OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE (ADULT SOCIAL CARE AND 
HEALTH) - TUESDAY 25TH JUNE, 2019

2

4. MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING 

RESOLVED:

That the Minutes of the meeting held on 26 February 2019, be confirmed 
as a correct record.

5. SEVEN DAY GP ACCESS UPDATE 

Further to Minutes Nod. 52 (2) (a) and 54 (2) of 26 February 2019, the 
Committee received a joint presentation by Jan Leonard, Director of Place 
– North, NHS South Sefton Clinical Commissioning Group (SS CCG) and 
NHS Southport and Formby Clinical Commissioning Group (SF CCG), 
providing a review of the seven day GP extended access scheme. Dr 
Abdul Zulbairu – GP Director Southport & Formby Health Ltd.; and Dr 
Gustavo Berni - GP Director South Sefton Primary Healthcare Ltd., were 
also in attendance at the meeting to provide information and to respond to 
questions put by Members of the Committee.

The presentation outlined the following:-

7 Day Access:
 Introduced in October 2018 as part of NHS Operational Planning 

Guidance; and
 National key performance indicators influenced service 

specification.

Key Features:
 GP, Nurse Practitioner, Practice Nurse, Health Care Assistant and 

Physiotherapist appointments;
 Available evenings (5pm – 8pm) and weekends (SFCCG: 9.00 a.m. 

– 12.00 p.m. / SSCCG: 10.00 a.m. – 1.00 p.m.);
 Bookable via own GP practice or NHS 111;
 Clinician can access patient’s medical records (with consent) and 

the consultation will be available to your own GP; and
 Unable to register with this service.

SS CCG:
 Quarter 4 2018/19 – a breakdown of appointments by Localities; 

and
 Patient Feedback.

.
SF CCG:

 Quarter 4 2018/19 – a breakdown of appointments by Localities; 
and

 Patient Feedback.

Fiona Taylor, the Chief Officer for NHS South Sefton CCG and NHS 
Southport and Formby CCG was in attendance to provide information and 
to respond to questions put by Members of the Committee.

Page 6

Agenda Item 3



OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE (ADULT SOCIAL CARE AND 
HEALTH) - TUESDAY 25TH JUNE, 2019

3

Members of the Committee asked questions/raised matters on the 
following issues: -

 Fewer patients were being signposted to the extended access 
service by GP practices in South Sefton.

The CCGs did consider statistics for individual GP practices to 
ascertain how well the service was being utilised.

 Were there any issues in accessing patients’ medical records?

Medical records could be accessed with the patient’s consent, 
although access could be an issue on occasions.

 How had the location for the service been determined in the north of 
the Borough?

The location had been chosen as it was considered to be fairly 
central within the Southport and Formby area.

 Could a profile of users be produced by age?

This could be produced and provided.

 Had the extended access service produced a reduction in core 
hours?

It was difficult to monitor use of the service during core hours, 
although some data had been collected at a national level. Some 
work would be required to consider how that data was collected and 
presented.

 Appointments for Advanced Nurse Practitioners and Practice 
Nurses were not being fully utilised.

Appointments for GPs were fully utilised. Some work was required 
to promote the availability of appointments to the public with 
Advanced Nurse Practitioners and Practice Nurses, as part of the 
service, although this was now becoming more well known.

 Could numbers be obtained as to whether patients were offered an 
appointment with Advanced Nurse Practitioners or Practice Nurses, 
whereas it would be more appropriate to see a GP?

The data would be considered to ascertain whether this could be 
produced.

In addition, available data for the extended access scheme could be 
presented quarterly to Members of the Committee via the Health 

Page 7

Agenda Item 3



OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE (ADULT SOCIAL CARE AND 
HEALTH) - TUESDAY 25TH JUNE, 2019

4

Provider Performance Dashboard Report, in the future.

RESOLVED: That

(1) the presentation and information provided on the seven day GP 
extended access scheme be noted.; and

(2) the Chief Officer for NHS South Sefton Clinical Commissioning 
Group (CCG) and NHS Southport and Formby CCG be requested 
to provide information, once available, on the following:-

 a profile of service users by age;
 the service charge element for the use of the buildings for the 

service;
 the total number of hours available for appointments and how that 

time is used; and
 available data for the extended access scheme to be presented 

quarterly in the future to the Committee, via the Health Provider 
Performance Dashboard Report.

6. PUBLIC HEALTH ANNUAL REPORT 

The Committee considered the report of the Head of Health and Wellbeing 
providing information about the preparation, content and plans for 
dissemination for the Public Health Annual Report (PHAR) 2018/19 on the 
issue of air quality in Sefton. The report indicated that the PHAR was an 
independent annual report of the Director of Public Health and was a 
statutory duty. The report set out the requirements and purpose of the 
PHAR; the rationale for focussing on air quality; progress made to date; 
goals; other key people and organisations the Council needed to work with 
in this area; calls for action; and publication and dissemination of the 
finalised PHAR.

This year’s annual report had been produced as a short animation, the aim 
of which was to present complex information in an accessible, engaging 
and transparent format which was easy to disseminate and could reach a 
broad audience. The finalised PHAR would be shared with other 
Committees, organisations and the full Council.

Prior to consideration of the report, the animation was shown to the 
Committee.

Matthew Ashton, Head of Health and Wellbeing was in attendance at the 
meeting to present the PHAR and respond to questions put by Members of 
the Committee.

Members of the Committee asked questions/raised matters on the 
following issues:-

 The importance of extending the anti-engine-idling campaign.

Page 8

Agenda Item 3



OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE (ADULT SOCIAL CARE AND 
HEALTH) - TUESDAY 25TH JUNE, 2019

5

 The carbon footprint produced as a result of ordering products on-
line and the need to change shopping habits as individuals and as a 
society.

 How was air quality measured and monitored?

The Council had some high technology fixed sites, whilst some 
were mobile. Monitors were very expensive to purchase and 
maintain. However, some basic monitoring could be carried out by 
pupils via the work in this area undertaken with schools.

 The importance of focussing on schools, particularly in relation to 
children’s health.

Education, particularly for children and young people, was important 
in raising the profile of air quality and to hold people and 
organisations to account.

 The importance of planting more trees in order to improve air 
quality.

 What progress had been made regarding improving air quality as a 
result of dock-related activity?

Monitoring systems still took place. Road improvements from 
Switch Island had taken place recently, including traffic light 
reconfigurations to reduce engine-idling by heavy goods vehicles 
(HGVs) en route to the docks.

 What systems were in place to monitor the tiniest pollution particles 
that could be inhaled?

The Department for Environment, Food and Rural Affairs (DEFRA) 
provided sophisticated equipment to monitor such pollution at 
certain sites within the UK. The Council had now adopted a “one 
Council” approach by combing Traffic and Environmental Health 
approaches to improve air quality. Monitors were expensive and a 
grant had recently been obtained from DEFRA to undertake indoor 
monitoring.

 Electric vehicles offered a safer alternative in terms of emissions.

 Could the Council do more in connection with dock-related activity?

Peel Ports, the Port Operators, had their own in-house approach to 
tackling air pollution and some engagement took place with the 
Council. Most modern HGVs and other vehicles had the cleanest 
emissions.

Page 9

Agenda Item 3



OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE (ADULT SOCIAL CARE AND 
HEALTH) - TUESDAY 25TH JUNE, 2019

6

 In relation to the more general functions of Public Health, was the 
service experiencing a rise in demand for alcohol-related services?

Drug and alcohol services were provided by Mersey Care NHS 
Foundation Trust. The Public Health grant to fund commissioned 
services had been reduced year on year, although reduced costs 
did not necessarily represent a reduced service.

RESOLVED:

That the Public Health Annual Report as presented, together with plans to 
promote the report, be noted.

7. FIVE YEAR PLAN FOR SEFTON 

The Committee was provided with a joint presentation by Fiona Taylor, the 
Chief Officer for NHS South Sefton Clinical Commissioning Group (CCG) 
and NHS Southport and Formby CCG, on reshaping Sefton – the NHS 5 
Year Place Plan.

The presentation outlined the following:-

 Introduction and Context;
 A Recap on Shaping Sefton;
 Approach;
 Draft 2019-24 Ambitions;
 Draft Priorities; and
 Next Steps.

RESOLVED:

That the presentation and information provided on the 5 Year Plan in 
Sefton be noted.

8. SEFTON CLINICAL COMMISSIONING GROUPS - UPDATE 
REPORT 

The Committee considered the joint update report of the NHS South 
Sefton Clinical Commissioning Group and the NHS Southport and Formby 
Clinical Commissioning Group (CCG) providing an update about the work 
of the CCGs. The report outlined details of the following: -

 Programme to transform health and care in Sefton;
 Annual accounts and forecasts for the year ahead;
 Primary Care Networks;
 Innovative approach to personalising care;
 Special Educational Needs and Disability (SEND) local area re-

inspection of Sefton;
 Independent investigation focused on Liverpool Community Health;
 Survey on local health policies review - deadline approaches;

Page 10

Agenda Item 3



OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE (ADULT SOCIAL CARE AND 
HEALTH) - TUESDAY 25TH JUNE, 2019

7

 Governing Body changes in South Sefton; and
 Next Governing Body meetings.

Fiona Taylor, Chief Officer for NHS South Sefton CCG and NHS Southport 
and Formby CCG, was in attendance to present the update report to the 
Committee, to highlight particular aspects of it, and to respond to 
questions put by Members of the Committee.

Members of the Committee asked questions/raised matters on the 
following issues: -

 In what ways could joint working be improved in relation to the 
(SEND) local area re-inspection of Sefton?

The CCGs remained optimistic that opportunities existed to take a 
joined-up working approach in relation to the service.

 Clarification was sought on the Annual accounts and forecasts for 
the year ahead.

A tariff-based system existed for acute providers within the NHS, in 
that there were standardised prices for procedures. Risk and 
reward sharing took place to maximise budgets within the NHS and 
more detail could be provided, if required.

 Had commissioning of private providers taken place?

Commissioning of some private companies took place, in a limited 
capacity, as the vast majority of services were commissioned from 
the NHS.

Mrs. Taylor also reported on temporary changes in relation to oral surgery 
services for people within the Sefton and West Lancashire areas.

RESOLVED:

That the joint update report submitted by the Clinical Commissioning 
Groups be received.

9. SEFTON CLINICAL COMMISSIONING GROUPS - HEALTH 
PROVIDER PERFORMANCE DASHBOARD 

The Committee considered the joint report of NHS South Sefton Clinical 
Commissioning Group and NHS Southport and Formby Clinical 
Commissioning Group (CCG), providing data on key performance areas, 
together with responses for the Friends and Family Test for both Southport 
and Ormskirk Hospital NHS Trust and Aintree University Hospital NHS 
Foundation Trust. Information on the monitoring of the new 7 day GP 
extended access scheme for both CCGs was also included within the 
data.

Page 11

Agenda Item 3



OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE (ADULT SOCIAL CARE AND 
HEALTH) - TUESDAY 25TH JUNE, 2019

8

Further to Minute No. 52 (2) (b) of 26 February 2019, information on 
Transient Ischaemic Attack (TIA) (mini stroke) Performance was also set 
out within the joint report.

RESOLVED:

That the information on Health Provider Performance be noted.

10. CABINET MEMBER REPORTS 

The Committee considered the report of the Chief Legal and Democratic 
Officer submitting the most recent Update Reports from the Cabinet 
Member – Adult Social Care, and the Cabinet Member – Health and 
Wellbeing, whose portfolios fell within the remit of this Committee.

The Cabinet Member Update Report - Adult Social Care, attached to the 
report at Appendix A, outlined information on the following:-

 Supported Living and Extra Care Housing;
 Fee Increases for 2019/20;
 Integrated Teams and Primary Care Link Workers;
 Good News Update;
 Performance Highlights;
 Sefton “Moving On” Event;
 Financial Update:

o Revenue; and
o Adult Social Care Capital.

Councillor Cummins, Cabinet Member – Adult Social Care, had submitted 
his apologies for the meeting.

The Cabinet Member Update Report – Health and Wellbeing, attached to 
the report at Appendix B, outlined developments on the following aspects 
of Public Health:-

 0-19 Public Health Nursing Services;
 Sexual Health Out-of-Area Cross Charging with Liverpool City 

Council;
 Health Checks;
 Flu Update;
 Public Health Service Plan;
 Public Health Performance Framework;
 Public Health Annual Report – Goals, Other Key Players and Calls 

for Action;
 Health Inequalities Report;
 NHS Long Term Plan;
 Outline Report on Other Commissioning Arrangements;
 Escape the Control Campaign;
 Baby Box;
 Sport and Recreation Fees and Charges 2019/20;

Page 12

Agenda Item 3



OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE (ADULT SOCIAL CARE AND 
HEALTH) - TUESDAY 25TH JUNE, 2019

9

 Sustainability of Sports Development Activity;
 Aspiring Instructors; and
 Ping Pong Parlour.

The Leisure performance, attached to the report at Appendix C, outlined 
developments on the following aspects of Leisure during 2018/19:-

 The Vision for Active Sefton:
o Health and Wellbeing Strategy Outcomes;
o Clinical Commissioning Group Linkages;
o Sport England Priorities;
o Wider Agendas and Aspirations of Local Partners;

 Service Delivery set up;
 Localities Integration;
 Early Intervention and Prevention / Health and Wellbeing Delivery;
 Budget Performance; and
 Future Developments.

Councillor Moncur, Cabinet Member – Health and Wellbeing, attended the 
meeting to present his Update Reports and highlight particular aspects of 
them.

RESOLVED:

That the update reports from the Cabinet Member – Adult Social Care, and 
the Cabinet Member – Health and Wellbeing be noted.

11. WORK PROGRAMME KEY DECISION FORWARD PLAN 

The Committee considered the report of the Chief Legal and Democratic 
Officer, seeking the views of the Committee on the draft Work Programme 
for 2019/20; identifying potential topics for a scrutiny review to be 
undertaken by a Working Group appointed by the Committee; identifying 
any items for pre-scrutiny scrutiny by the Committee from the Key 
Decision Forward Plan; noting the progress to date by the Joint Health 
Scrutiny Committee for Cheshire and Merseyside (Orthopaedic Services); 
and noting the outcome of the site visit to Aintree University Hospital NHS 
Foundation Trust.

A Work Programme for 2019/20 was set out at Appendix A to the report, to 
be considered, along with any additional items to be included and agreed. 
The Terms of Reference for the Committee were set out at Appendix B to 
the report.

The Committee was invited to consider a potential topic for a scrutiny 
review to be undertaken by a Working Group appointed by the Committee. 
A Criteria Checklist for Selecting Topics for Review was set out at 
Appendix C to the report.

Page 13

Agenda Item 3



OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE (ADULT SOCIAL CARE AND 
HEALTH) - TUESDAY 25TH JUNE, 2019

10

Members of the Committee asked questions/raised matters on the 
following issues:-

 Geographical trends within the Borough regarding particular health 
conditions, including differing life expectancy across Council Wards, 
together with action being taken to address such trends.

An agenda item on the Joint Strategic Needs Assessment was 
scheduled to be submitted to the meeting of the Committee during 
October 2019. Geographical trends on particular health conditions 
and life expectancy could be addressed then. This could include 
information on locality/neighbourhood partnership working by both 
the Council and the Clinical Commissioning Groups (CCGs), to 
address the early intervention and prevention agenda.

In addition, a new health inequalities report was being developed 
and could possibly be submitted to the Committee in early 2020.

There were two Decisions within the latest Key Decision Forward Plan, 
attached to the report at Appendix D, that fell under this Committee’s 
remit, and the Committee was invited to consider items for pre-scrutiny.

The report set out the progress to date by the Joint Health Scrutiny 
Committee for Cheshire and Merseyside (Orthopaedic Services), which 
had concluded in March 2019.

The report also set out the arrangements made for Members to attend a 
site visit to Aintree University Hospital NHS Foundation Trust during June 
2019, to view facilities in relation to A&E and older people’s care at the 
Trust, and Members of the Committee were invited to comment on the site 
visit.

Members of the Committee asked questions/raised matters on the 
following issues:-

 Older people’s care at the Trust appeared to work well, with plenty 
of opportunities for social interaction. Concerns were held regarding 
the new build for the Royal Liverpool University Hospital as there 
would be single rooms for patients, increasing the risk of social 
isolation.

The Chief Officer for NHS South Sefton CCG and NHS Southport 
and Formby CCG, undertook to investigate what methods the Trust 
would be adopting in order to mitigate the risk of social isolation.

RESOLVED: That

(1) the Work Programme for 2019/20, as set out in Appendix A to the 
report, be agreed;

Page 14

Agenda Item 3



OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE (ADULT SOCIAL CARE AND 
HEALTH) - TUESDAY 25TH JUNE, 2019

11

(2) consideration of a scrutiny review topic for a Working Group review 
during 2019/20 be deferred until the Joint Strategic Needs 
Assessment has been considered by the Committee;

(3) the contents of the Key Decision Forward Plan for the period 1 July 
– 31 October 2019, be noted;

(4) the progress of the Joint Health Scrutiny Committee for Cheshire 
and Merseyside (Orthopaedic Services), be noted;

(5) the outcome of the site visit to Aintree University Hospital NHS 
Foundation Trust, to view facilities in relation to A&E and older 
people’s care, at the Trust, be noted; and

(6) the Chief Officer for NHS South Sefton Clinical Commissioning 
Group (CCG) and NHS Southport and Formby CCG be requested 
to investigate what methods the Royal Liverpool and Broadgreen 
University Hospitals NHS Trust would be considering in the new 
build in order to mitigate the risk of social isolation for patients, 
particularly older patients; and provide the information to the Senior 
Democratic Services Officer, for circulation to Members of the 
Committee.

Page 15

Agenda Item 3



This page is intentionally left blank



                                                                                                                                           

Pa
ge

 1

Acute Sustainability Programme
Introduction

Over the past month the Acute Sustainability for Southport and Ormskirk has focused on 
finessing the new models of care through a series of check and challenge processes that 
have tested the clinical principles of the model, the emerging patient pathways through the 
model and the modelling assumptions that will address the case for change. The work on the 
Fragile Service review has completed its first phase with initial findings on all current and 
potential fragile services provided by the Trust. A suite of expertise has been commissioned 
that will provide robust analysis and evidence around the delivery of the care models to 
ensure that they address the challenges raised in the case for change.

The Care Models

There have been 5 care models developed for Frailty, Urgent & Emergency Care, 
Paediatrics, Maternity & Neonatal services and Gynaecology & Sexual Health services. A 
series of testing processes have been undertaken to provide check and challenge to the 
clinical models and their emerging patient pathways. The Women & Children’s models have 
taken a ‘dragon’s den’ type approach using the themes from the first round of testing around 
GP impact, patient experience, impact on community services and innovation as their key 
areas of challenge. Frailty has established a virtual design group that have developed 
focused patient pathways that span the system and, alongside Urgent & Emergency Care 
are doing further testing along similar lines to the Women & Children’s approach. Expertise 
has been brought in to provide a framework to robustly assess the impact on equality and 
quality to feed into the development cycle. A wider stakeholder event is planned for 
September which will be the start of a series of engagement activities that will bring in the 
broad variety of stakeholder voices into the development of the models.

Fragile Service Review 

The Trust has undertaken a review of all clinical services to identify what services are 
currently or predicted to be fragile in terms of workforce or contractual arrangements. The 
PMO undertook a desktop review of all these services alongside qualitative interviews with 
operational service leads to understand the clinical, operational and financial fragility of the 
services provided.  Several services have been flagged as having urgent issues, some of 
which are currently in hand such as the strategic partnership discussions for head and neck 
services, stroke services and gastro services with Aintree. The outcomes of the review have 
been shared with West Lancashire CCG and Southport & Formby CCG for further 
discussion and action.

Analytic and engagement support

External expertise has been sought to provide robust, quantitative and qualitative analysis to 
the care model development. Financial and activity model has been commissioned from 
MIAA solutions with oversight on the work provided by the Sefton Place Finance Directors 
Group. Healthcare site planning expertise has commenced reviewing estates capacity in 
alignment with the clinical strategy development by GB Partnerships who also are a strategic 
partner for the Sefton Place Estates Group. Proposals are being reviewed for workforce 

Page 17

Agenda Item 4



                                                                                                                                           

Pa
ge

 2

analysis and communications & engagement support with expectations that they will 
commence early August – this work will be aligned to the wider Sefton Place enabler 
workstreams already established. It is expected that Digital expertise will be drawn from the 
Sefton Place Digital workstream. A small project team is being established to align all this 
supporting work with the wider acute sustainability programme and ensure that robust 
evidence is developed to support the care model developments to provide options for 
addressing the challenges in the case for change.

Conclusion

The Acute Sustainability Programme continues to make progress in developing clinically 
sound models of care that align with clinically developed design principles. Work continues 
to continuously check and challenge these models with a variety of engagement and 
analytical activities whilst efforts to ensure effective equality and quality impact assessments 
are undertaken. A whole organisation review of clinical services has been completed with a 
range of services identified as fragile, where the majority of these services have plans in 
place with partners to address these issues, a wider discussion with both CCGs is being set 
up to ensure a whole system approach is developed. External expertise has been sought 
from existing Sefton Place or wider Cheshire & Merseyside Health & Care Partners 
partnerships to provide quantitative and qualitative evidence to support the care model 
development in providing answers to the challenges flagged in the case for change.

6th August 2019

Page 18

Agenda Item 4



Southport and Formby District General Hospital
Ormskirk and District General Hospital
North West Regional Spinal Injuries Centre

Progress Update
Overview and Scrutiny Committee

Therese Patten (Deputy Chief Executive)

Terry Hankin (Medical Director)

Tuesday 3rd September 2019

P
age 19

A
genda Item

 4



Our Trust by numbers

P
age 20

A
genda Item

 4



100% Board member 

turnover since

August 2015, including:

• 7 Chief Executives

• 5 Chief Operating

Officers

• 5 Medical Directors
• 5 HR Directors

The way we were

P
age 21

A
genda Item

 4



The Trust in context

We are on a journey of 
improvement, committed to 
improving the quality of our 
services, how we manage our 
finances and our performance  

• Our systems of governance are 
more robust

• We have rebuilt trust and 
confidence with our 
stakeholders

• We are changing and 
improving because of our 
plans and ambition

SIGNIFICANT CATALYSTS FOR CHANGE

Trust subject of NGO’s first FTSU review

AUTUMN 2017

CQC rates Trust RI; inadequate overall for well-led; and 

inadequate for patient safety in urgent care

MARCH 2018

SoS objectives for new Chief Executive to avoid Trust falling 

into special measures

APRIL 2018

Key appointments: Director of Nursing; Chief Operating 

Officer; Medical Director; Trust Chair

MAY 2018 – Jan 2019

Trust meets annual control total

MARCH 2019

Full, substantive compliment of A&E consultants appointed

JULY 2019

Launch of Quality Strategy 

MAY 2019

P
age 22

A
genda Item

 4



• Stabilise

• Improve

• Sustain

Vision 2020: a safer, calmer Trust

P
age 23

A
genda Item

 4



CQC 
inspection 

reports

Internal 
Core 

Services 
Review

Themes 
from staff 
& patient 
feedback

Responsive to patient need

Quality 
priorities ü Care of the older 

patient

ü Medicines 
management

ü Deteriorating patient

ü Infection prevention 
and control

P
age 24

A
genda Item

 4



Improvement work streams

Quality and safety

• Quality priorities

• QI Approach 

Finance

• Deliver our control total

• Maximise capacity using transformative 
efficiency and productivity tools (GIRFT, 
Model Hospital)

Strategy

• Engage partners to develop 
opportunities for joint working

• Develop an affordable, sustainable acute 
services model

Workforce and engagement

• Culture: OD, staff engagement and 
Freedom to Speak Up, OD strategy

• Clinical workforce strategy to ensure the 
right numbers of skilled staff

Operations

• Achievement of quality targets for ED, 
RTT, cancer and diagnostics (new 
pathways, Red2Green, 1,000 Days)

• Clinical documentation focus on accuracy, 
completion and safe storage

P
age 25

A
genda Item

 4



Targeted investments

ü Additional clinical staff 
2018/19 (£2.8m)

ü A&E extension and 
refurbishment 
(£1.25m)

ü 50+ RNs and 50+ 
HCAs 2019/20 (£1m)

ü 24/7 Critical Care 
Outreach team 
(£350k)

ü Surgical Assessment 
Unit (£280k)

ü New sexual health 
clinic (£260k)

ü Patient discharge 
lounge (£136k)

ü Medical equipment 
(£6m over 5 years)

P
age 26

A
genda Item

 4



To be sustainable we need to:

ü Identify and resolve the short and long term   
drivers of our financial deficit

ü Identify and resolve our deep-rooted issues with 
clinical standards

ü Have an engaged and appropriate workforce

ü Establish a sustainable and resilient 
organisational form

9Acute Sustainability

P
age 27

A
genda Item

 4



The Acute 
Sustainability 
programme is 
following a 
roadmap to 
enable the 
transition from 
current state, 
to interim to 
future state.

Stabilise

Improve

Sustain

Current State Interim State Future State

Theatre Efficiency

Outpatient Efficiency

Endoscopy Efficiency

Patient Flow

GIRFT Orthopaedics

GIRFT Ophthalmology

GIRFT other

Urgent & Emergency 

Care Model

Frailty Care Model

Women & Children 

Models

All specialty fragile 

testing

Strategic Partnership 

Approach

Integrated services 

Care Model

Other internal 

efficiency progs

Consolidation
of acute services 

across 2 sites within 

existing limitations 

to maximise 

efficiencies and 

improve patient 

experience & 

outcomes

Partnership 

framework to 

enable delivery 

of acute and 

integrated 

service care 

models to our 

local population

Strategy 

for delivering the 

future state 

covering estates, 

organisational 

form and 

consultation 

requirements

• Full implementation of 

all care models and 

target operating 

models

• Innovative 

infrastructure: digital, 

estates, workforce and 

BI

• Capital investment 

secured

• Public consultation 

approval

• New organisational 

form?

• New build?

• Aligned with Cheshire 

and Merseyside & 

Lancashire and South 

Cumbria

2-3 years 3 years +

Rate limiting factors

E
n

a
b

le
rs

: 
D

ig
it

a
l,

E
st

a
te

s,
 W

o
rk

fo
rc

e
, 

B
u

si
n

e
ss

 I
n

te
ll

ig
e

n
ce

Fragile Services

P
age 28

A
genda Item

 4



A                workforceSickness absenceSickness absence

ü Growing staff 

engagement (inc

1,400 staff 

Facebook group)

ü Open Day

ü Time to Shine 

Awards

ü Improved HR 

processes

ü Greater senior 

leader visibility

P
age 29

A
genda Item

 4



121.2120.6
118.3117.5

116
114.8

112.8112.3
110.6

104.5

101.5

94.890

95

100

105

110

115

120

125

Rolling 12-month HSMR

Safety and quality = improvement

ü Improved patient mortality

ü One of best performing non-
specialist NW EDs

ü Reduction in the number of 
ambulance handovers >60 
mins (most improved in NW) 

ü 19% annual decrease in 
formal complaints

ü RTT >92% since Dec 16

ü Zero MRSA since Sep 17

ü Mandatory training >85%

ü Sepsis identification 100%

HSMR

94.8

HSMR

94.8

SHMI

102
(falling & no 

longer outlier)

SHMI

102
(falling & no 

longer outlier)

0

500

1000

1500

2000

Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec

N
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

p
a

ti
e

n
ts

Patients nursed on the corridor

2018

2019

P
age 30

A
genda Item

 4



Planning for the future

ü Appoint new Chief Executive by September 2019

ü Exit Challenged Provider and remove licence conditions

ü CQC rating of ‘Good’ by 2020

ü Future hospital sustainability outline October 31

ü Move to next level of quality and safety

ü Deliver Estates and IM&T Plan

P
age 31

A
genda Item

 4



Questions and feedback

P
age 32

A
genda Item

 4



1

Scrutiny Briefing Report to: Overview and Scrutiny Committee
(Adult Social Care and Health)

Date of Meeting: 3 September 2019

Subject: Update Report of Fiona Taylor, Chief Officer

Organisation: NHS South Sefton CCG and NHS Southport and Formby CCG

Contact Officer: Lyn Cooke 
Tel: 0151 317 8456
Email: lyn.cooke@southseftonccg.nhs.uk

Purpose/Summary

To provide Members of the Committee with an update about the work of NHS South 
Sefton CCG and NHS Southport and Formby CCG. 

Recommendation(s)

Members of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee (Adult Social Care and Health) are 
requested to receive this report.

Page 33

Agenda Item 5

mailto:lyn.cooke@southseftonccg.nhs.uk


2

Update for Overview and Scrutiny Committee (Adult Social Care) 
September 2019

If you would like more information about any of the items contained in this update, if you have 
any questions about local health services, or any particular issues you would like to raise, 
please call 0151 317 8456.   

CCGs make good progress in annual assessment 

Sefton’s CCGs are amongst some of the best performing in the country in a number of key areas 
of their work according to their latest assessment by health regulators. NHS England’s annual 
Improvement and Assessment Framework (IAF) assessment measures all CCGs against 58 
performance indicators in areas ranging from leadership and sustainability, to cancer and 
dementia. Results provide a benchmark for CCGs, so they can understand where they are doing 
well and where they need to do more in the year ahead. NHS South Sefton CCG and NHS 
Southport and Formby CCG were the only two in Merseyside to be awarded the highest results 
for how well they engage local residents in their work, each gaining a top ‘green star’ rating.

NHS Southport and Formby CCG - ranked top in the country for improving access to 
psychological therapies (IAPT), with 64% of patients who finished treatment moving on to 
recovery The CCG rated ‘outstanding’ for its work to identify people living with dementia, with 
76% of the estimated number of people with the condition having a diagnosis. The CCG also 
ranked top in the country for patients’ experience of cancer services and were ranked fifth in the 
country for cancer survival rates. Results also place the CCG tenth in the country for meeting the 
waiting time target of 18 weeks or less for patients being referred by their practice to having 
hospital treatment or surgery. Results also reflected the work of GP practices in Southport and 
Formby, ranking them sixth highest in the country for patients’ good experience of their services 
and care.

NHS South Sefton CCG - The CCG achieved an overall rating of ‘outstanding’ for the quality of 
diabetes services. Local cancer services ranked fifth best in the country for patient experience. 
The results also recognised high survival rates of over 70% amongst patients one year on from 
their cancer diagnosis. Additionally, the CCG was ranked amongst the top 25% in the country in 
the improving access to psychological therapies (IAPT) category.  

Overall, both CCGs maintained their ‘requires improvement’ rating reflecting the hard work to 
secure good progress across a number of areas amidst another challenging year for the local 
NHS commissioners. Whilst the CCGs made progress in managing their budgets, their ongoing 
financial positon remains challenging as demand for services continues to grow. 

You can see the full IAF results for all CCGs on the MyNHS section of the NHS Choices website: 
https://www.nhs.uk/service-search/Performance/Search/

Page 34

Agenda Item 5

https://www.nhs.uk/service-search/Performance/Search/


3

Governing Body welcomes Alan as its newest member

Alan Sharples has joined the Governing Body of NHS South Sefton CCG as its new lay member 
for governance. The former NHS finance director brings over 40 years’ experience of working in 
the public sector to the CCG. Until recently Alan was a non executive director for the Walton 
Centre NHS Foundation Trust. He joined the trust in June 2011, where he was chairman of the 
audit committee and the Walton Charity Committee. Before joining the Walton Centre, Alan was 
director of finance, information and commissioning at Alder Hey Children’s NHS Foundation 
Trust for nearly 15 years. In his new post, Alan will oversee key areas of governance for the 
CCG, including audit and remuneration. He will chair the audit committee and take on the role of 
deputy chair of the Governing Body during his three year term of office. Alan is a former 
president of the North Wales branch of the Institute of Revenues, Rating and Valuation (IRRV) 
and vice chairman of the North Wales Local Authority Chief Finance Officers’ Association. He is 
also a trustee of the charity, Vision for Children and was previously a trustee and finance 
committee chair for the North of England Zoological Society, the charity that operates Chester 
Zoo. 

New pilot stoma prescribing service to improve patient care

From early November 2019, a new pilot service is being introduced by both CCGs with the aim of 
significantly improving the quality of care and support for around 750 stoma patients in the 
borough. The Sefton Stoma Prescription Service will make it easy for patients to order all the 
appliances and products they need. Additionally, the 12 month pilot service will give patients 
access to advice from specialist stoma nurses and an individualised care review to ensure they 
are always prescribed the best products for their differing needs. Coloplast, who specialises in 
supporting ostomates, is running the pilot service working together with GP practices and 
community and hospital based stoma teams. The pilot will be monitored closely by the CCGs 
throughout the year to make sure it works well for patients.    

Trans Health Sefton wins national award 

Trans Health Sefton has been named as a winner in this year’s Healthcare Transformation 
Awards 2019, which recognise the very best in innovation and improvement across the NHS. 
The joint Sefton CCG service was nominated in the Innovation in Primary Care category for their 
trans service in Sefton, which launched in November 2017. Across the country, trans people 
generally experience poorer healthcare than the wider population, which can mean significant 
risks to their health and wellbeing. Many health professionals don’t have the relevant skills or 
understanding to achieve the best access and outcomes for transgender patients. To address 
this, the CCGs in Sefton worked with patients and health professionals to design an innovative 
primary care based service. The service now provides timely and holistic support for transgender 
patients and their families to improve their experience and health outcomes. Now in its second 
year, the ‘Trans Health Sefton – a unified approach to gender care’ service has gone from 
strength to strength. The clinic is the first of its kind and a true grass roots initiative. Patients say 
it is better and have reported higher levels of wellbeing. As the service has been so successful in 
Sefton, a new collaborative called ‘Cheshire and Merseyside Area Gender Identity Collaborative’ 
(CMAGIC) has applied for funding to roll out this approach across Cheshire and Merseyside. 
Trans Health Sefton is available for anyone registered with a GP in Sefton and patients can be 
referred by a healthcare professional such as their GP, or can refer themselves to the service.

Page 35

Agenda Item 5



4

Sefton Health and Care Transformation Programme

The development of the Sefton Five Year NHS Place Plan is coming to the end of its initial 
planning phase, with an outline draft of the document to be shared in early September. This will 
coincide with a short public survey about the plan, which will ask people to comment on the draft 
itself and raise questions about the priorities and ambitions. The work to develop both the plan 
and the engagement activity has been aligned with the refresh of the overarching Sefton Health 
and Wellbeing Strategy, led by Sefton Council, as there are clear synergies. The results of the 
engagement from both projects will help to jointly inform the development of the plan and the 
Health and Wellbeing Strategy. The Sefton Five Year NHS Place Plan looks at a number of 
different health and care outcomes and ambitions for the future focussing on reducing health 
inequalities, which include community provision, care closer to home, encouraging healthier 
lifestyles and ensuring the right and most appropriate community and acute services are 
available for the people of Sefton in the future. The requirements of the NHS Long Term Plan will 
also be addressed in the plan, which is due for completion in November. 

One to One (North West) Limited 

On 29 July 2019 One to One (North West) Limited informed NHS commissioners, including the 
CCGs in Sefton that it was unable to continue to operate. The independent midwifery provider 
notified CCGs that it would therefore cease trading on 31 July 2019. In response, CCGs who 
collectively commissioned services from One to One, took immediate action working with NHS 
trusts to ensure the safe and quick transfer of women to alternative providers. This included 
putting a helpline in place based at Wirral University Teaching Hospital NHS Foundation Trust 
run by experienced midwives to support women who were booked with One to One. On the date 
the company notified CCGs of its decision to cease operating, it had over 1,600 women booked 
for either ante-natal or post-natal care - 41 of these were from south Sefton and 20 were from 
Southport and Formby. By 12 August, the helpline was closed and nearly all Sefton women 
booked with One to One had been safely transferred to new providers. Maternity services have 
now contacted all remaining Sefton women. The contract with One to One was due to expire on 
31 March 2020 and commissioners had already begun to tender for a provider. There was an 
expectation that One to One would continue to deliver services until the end of the contract. A 
decision has now been taken to pause this procurement and commissioners will shortly begin a 
review to determine any lessons learned.

Aintree and Royal hospitals coming together 

Work to bring together Aintree University Hospital NHS Foundation Trust and the Royal Liverpool 
and Broadgreen University Hospitals NHS Trust in a formal merger is on track, with the recent 
appointments of a chair and chief executive for the proposed new organisation’s shadow interim 
board. From 1 September Sue Musson will become the chair of the interim board of the 
proposed Liverpool University Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust, the name of the merged 
organisation, whilst Steve Warburton has been appointed as its chief executive.  

From 1 September until the merger takes place, Steve will also take up the role of chief executive 
of both trusts, while Sue will become chair of the Royal Liverpool and Broadgreen University 
Hospitals NHS Trust.

Page 36

Agenda Item 5



5

The merger proposal is clinically led and grounded in meeting the health needs of local people. 
By coming together doctors, nurses and health professionals at the trusts want to improve the 
quality of services and ensure all patients have access to the very best care, wherever they live 
or are treated.  By coming together they believe they can:

 Improve clinical quality so patients have the best results from their care
 Deliver consistently good care, seven days a week
 Ensure excellent patient experience 
 Enable patients to access more clinical trials 
 Reduce duplication of healthcare services
 Attract the best staff

Throughout May and June this year, staff at the trusts were given the opportunity to share their 
views on the merger proposal and how the trusts come together to improve care. At the same 
time, a series of public engagement events were held at locations across Liverpool, Sefton and 
Knowsley, together with promotion of an online survey for those who preferred to share their 
views electronically. A full report of the findings from this engagement work is expected to be 
published shortly. 

The Competition and Markets Authority (CMA), which is responsible for assessing the impact of 
the merger on patient choice, has cleared the proposal having concluded that it would not result 
in a loss of choice for patients. The decision follows the completion of a Phase 1 inquiry by the 
CMA, which saw it review a detailed proposal that was submitted by the trusts in June 2019. 
Clearing the CMA process is a significant step towards merger. The merger proposal will now be 
considered by NHS Improvement (NHSI), who will assign the merger with a risk rating that will be 
considered by the boards and councils of governors at both trusts in September, who will take it 
into consideration in advance of a final decision to apply for merger. Subject to the above, and 
subject to obtaining approval from the Secretary of State, the trusts are expected to merge 
formally in October 2019.  

Running alongside the merger proposal is the reconfiguration of trauma, orthopaedics and ENT 
services, which was considered and approved by the Joint Health Scrutiny Committee for 
Cheshire & Merseyside in March 2019. The trusts have confirmed the new models will be 
implemented during November 2019 and a separate briefing will be issued with further details for 
the Overview and Scrutiny Committee in due course.

Health and wellbeing marketplace at ‘Big Chat meets Annual Review’ event

Sefton residents will be able to pick up a range of useful information about local services and 
speak directly with health and care professionals at a ‘marketplace’ style event that kicks off the 
CCGs’ next Big Chat events. 

The CCGs’ Big Chats are again combined with their annual general meetings (AGM). As well as 
reviewing performance over the past year, the events provide attendees with the chance to give 
their views about the CCGs latest work. 

Ahead of the main programme getting underway, people will be able to browse a range of stalls 
from organisations such as the Stroke Association and Macmillan Cancer Support. 

Page 37

Agenda Item 5



6

In addition, there will be advice from the CCGs medicines management team, whilst IMerseyside 
will be showcasing some of the latest technological advances coming to GP practices in Sefton. 

The events take place as follows:

 NHS Southport and Formby CCG - Tuesday 10 September 2019, 1pm to 4.30pm, The 
Bliss Hotel (formerly the Ramada), Southport

 NHS South Sefton CCG - Thursday 12 September 2019, 1pm to 4.30pm, Bootle Cricket 
Club

People are asked to notify the CCGs of their attendance in advance by calling 0151 317 8456.

Next governing body meetings 

Sefton residents are invited to attend the CCGs’ September governing body meetings, which are 
held in public starting from 1pm on the dates and at the venues below:

 NHS Southport and Formby CCG – Wednesday 4 September 2019, Family Life Centre, 
Ash St, Southport, Merseyside, PR8 6JH 

 NHS South Sefton CCG - Thursday 5 September 2019, 3rd floor boardroom, Merton 
House, Stanley Rd, Bootle, L20 3DL

Anyone wishing to attend is asked to contact 0151 317 8456 to book their place.

Visit the CCGs’ websites for more about their work www.southseftonccg.nhs.uk or 
www.southportandformbyccg.nhs.uk, follow them on Twitter @NHSSSCCG or 
@NHSSFCCG or see a range of short films on You Tube for NHSSSCCG or NHS SFCCG 

Page 38

Agenda Item 5

http://www.southseftonccg.nhs.uk/
http://www.southportandformbyccg.nhs.uk/
https://twitter.com/NHSSSCCG
https://twitter.com/nhssfccg
https://www.youtube.com/channel/UCVF6RjsbZXnXFmoHqMzSJnQ
https://www.youtube.com/channel/UC3zskxhEM5dWeJtypBBmTOA


Main Provider Performance –

November 2018

The following slides present performance against key strategic, NHS constitution, quality 

and safety indicators for the main providers the two CCGs commission from.   

Time periods vary for the indicators presented, and are indicated in the tables. 

P
age 39

A
genda Item

 6



NHS Southport and Formby CCG

Key Performance Area
Time 

Period
Performance Target Trend

A&E 4hour Waits, All Types (Southport & 

Ormskirk, cumultive YTD) 
Mar-19 88.7% 87% (STP trajectory)

Cancer 2 Week Waits (Southport & 

Ormskirk, cumulative YTD)
Mar-19 95.1% 93%

Cancer 62 Day - Screening (Southport & 

Ormskirk Cumulative YTD)
Mar-19 78.6% 90%

Cancer 31 Day (Southport & Ormskirk, 

cumulative YTD)
Mar-19 98.5% 96%

RTT -18 Weeks Incomplete (Southport & 

Ormskirk, in month snaphot position)
Mar-19 94.5% 92%

C.Difficile (Southport & Ormskirk, cumulative 

YTD)
Mar-19 12 35 (year end)

MRSA (Southport & Ormskirk, cumulative 

YTD)
Mar-19 0 0

Stroke (80% of Pts spending 90% of time on 

Stroke Unit, Southport & Ormskirk, monthly 

snapshot position)

Mar-19 42.9% 80%

%  TIA assessed and treated within 24 hours 

(Southport & Ormskirk, monthly snapshot 

position)

Mar-19 0.0% 60%

Ambulance Category 1 Mean 7 minute 

response time (CCG LEVEL)
Mar-19

8 minutes                  

48 seconds
<=7 Minutes

Mental Health: Care Programme Approach 

(Quarterly)

Qtr 4         

Mar 19
100.0% 95%

Mental Health: IAPT 16.8% Access (CCG 

LEVEL)
Mar-19 1.27%

1.4% per month Qtr 1-3                   

1.58% per month Qtr 4

Mental Health: IAPT 50% Recovery (CCG 

LEVEL)
Mar-19 56.2% 50%

Mental Health: IAPT waiting <6 weeks 

(Quarterly)

Qtr 4         

Mar 19
96.0% 75%

Mental Health: IAPT waiting <18 weeks 

(Quarterly)

Qtr 4         

Mar 19
100.0% 90%

Data note - % TIA assessed 

and treated within 24 hours 

(S&O monthly snapshot 

position)

March-19 position reflects 

earlier data quality issues at 

the trust. For June-19, 

performance for this indicator 

is 27.3% (6 out of 22 patients), 

reflecting the trust’s ongoing 

work to rectify reporting 

issues, as outlined in June’s 

performance report to the 

committee.

P
age 40

A
genda Item

 6



Southport & Ormskirk

Friends & Family

Measure
Time 

Period

Southport & 

Ormskirk
England Average Trend

Inpatient – response Mar-19 15.0% 24.9%

Inpatient Recommended Mar-19 96.0% 96.0%

Inpatient Not Recommended Mar-19 1.0% 2.0%

A&E – response Mar-19 1.0% 12.2%

A&E Recommended Mar-19 90.0% 86.0%

A&E Not Recommended Mar-19 7.0% 8.0%

P
age 41

A
genda Item

 6



NHS Southport and Formby CCG
7 Day GP Extended Access

Quarter 1 2019/20 - Localities

P
age 42

A
genda Item

 6



NHS South Sefton CCG

Key Performance Area
Time 

Period
Performance Target Trend

A&E 4hour Waits, All Types (Aintree) Mar-19 86.4% 94.2% (STP trajectory)

Cancer 2 Week Waits (Aintree) Mar-19 87.1% 93%

Cancer 62 Day - Screening (Aintree) Mar-19 75.9% 90%

Cancer 31 Day (Aintree) Mar-19 97.4% 96%

RTT -18 Weeks Incomplete (Aintree) Mar-19 89.0% 92%

C.Difficile (Aintree) Mar-19 39 45 (year end)

MRSA (Aintree) Mar-19 2 0

Stroke (80% of Pts spending 90% of time on 

Stroke Unit) (Aintree)
Mar-19 70.6% 80%

%  TIA assessed and treated within 24 hours 

(Aintree)
Mar-19 100% 60%

Ambulance Category 1 Mean 7 minute 

response time (CCG LEVEL)
Mar-19

7 minutes                                                         

22 seconds
<=7 Minutes

Mental Health: Care Programme Approach 

(Quarterly)

Qtr 4         

Mar 19
100.0% 95%

Mental Health: IAPT 16.8% Access (CCG 

LEVEL)
Mar-19 1.28%

1.4% per month Qtr 1-3                   

1.58% per month Qtr 4

Mental Health: IAPT 50% Recovery (CCG 

LEVEL)
Mar-19 47.4% 50%

Mental Health: IAPT waiting <6 weeks 

(Quarterly)

Qtr 4         

Mar 19
100.0% 75%

Mental Health: IAPT waiting <18 weeks 

(Quarterly)

Qtr 4         

Mar 19
100.0% 90%

P
age 43

A
genda Item

 6



Aintree University
Friends & Family

Measure
Time 

Period
Aintree England Average Trend

Inpatient – response Mar-19 20.8% 24.9%

Inpatient Recommended Mar-19 94.0% 96.0%

Inpatient Not Recommended Mar-19 4.0% 2.0%

A&E – response Mar-19 18.7% 12.2%

A&E Recommended Mar-19 88.0% 86.0%

A&E Not Recommended Mar-19 8.0% 8.0%

P
age 44

A
genda Item

 6



NHS South Sefton CCG

7 Day GP Extended Access

Quarter 1 2019/20 - Localities

P
age 45

A
genda Item

 6



T
his page is intentionally left blank



1

Report to: Overview and 
Scrutiny 
Committee

(Adult Social Care 
and Health)

Date of Meeting: 3 September 2019

Subject: Cabinet Member Reports – June - September 2019

Report of: Chief Legal and 
Democratic 
Officer

Wards Affected: All

Cabinet Portfolio: Adult Social Care
Health and Wellbeing

Is this a Key 
Decision:

No Included in 
Forward Plan:

No

Exempt / 
Confidential 
Report:

No

Summary:

To submit the Cabinet Member – Adult Social Care and the Cabinet Member - 
Health and Wellbeing reports relating to the remit of the Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee.

Recommendation:

That the Cabinet Member - Adult Social Care and the Cabinet Member - Health 
and Wellbeing reports relating to the remit of the Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee be noted.

Reasons for the Recommendation:

In order to keep Overview and Scrutiny Members informed, the Overview and 
Scrutiny Management Board has agreed for relevant Cabinet Member Reports to be 
submitted to appropriate Overview and Scrutiny Committees.

Alternative Options Considered and Rejected: 

No alternative options have been considered because the Overview and Scrutiny 
Management Board has agreed for relevant Cabinet Member Reports to be 
submitted to appropriate Overview and Scrutiny Committees.

What will it cost and how will it be financed?

Any financial implications associated with the Cabinet Member reports which are 
referred to in this update are contained within the respective reports.

Page 47

Agenda Item 7



2

(A) Revenue Costs – see above

(B) Capital Costs – see above

Implications of the Proposals:

Resource Implications (Financial, IT, Staffing and Assets):

Legal Implications:

Equality Implications:
There are no equality implications. 

Contribution to the Council’s Core Purpose:

Protect the most vulnerable: None directly applicable to this report. The Cabinet 
Member updates provides information on activity within Councillor Cummins’ and 
Councillor Moncur’s portfolios during the previous three-month period. Any 
reports relevant to their portfolios considered by the Cabinet, Cabinet Member or 
Committees during this period would contain information as to how such reports 
contributed to the Council’s Core Purpose.

Facilitate confident and resilient communities: As above

Commission, broker and provide core services: As above

Place – leadership and influencer: As above

Drivers of change and reform: As above

Facilitate sustainable economic prosperity: As above

Greater income for social investment: As above

Cleaner Greener: As above

What consultations have taken place on the proposals and when?

(A) Internal Consultations

The Cabinet Member Update Reports are not subject to FD/LD consultation.  Any 
specific financial and legal implications associated with any subsequent reports 
arising from the attached Cabinet Member update reports will be included in those 
reports as appropriate

Page 48

Agenda Item 7



3

(B) External Consultations 

Not applicable 

Implementation Date for the Decision

Immediately following the Committee meeting.

Contact Officer: Debbie Campbell
Telephone Number: 0151 934 2254
Email Address: debbie.campbell@sefton.gov.uk 

Appendices:

The following appendices are attached to this report:-

Appendix A - Cabinet Member - Adult Social Care - update report
Appendix B - Cabinet Member – Health and Wellbeing – update report

Background Papers:

There are no background papers available for inspection.

1. Introduction/Background

1.1 In order to keep Overview and Scrutiny Members informed, the Overview and 
Scrutiny Management Board has agreed for relevant Cabinet Member 
Reports to be submitted to appropriate Overview and Scrutiny Committees.

1.2 Attached to this report, for information, are the most recent Cabinet Member 
reports for the Adult Social Care and Health and Wellbeing portfolios.

Page 49

Agenda Item 7

mailto:debbie.campbell@sefton.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



APPENDIX A

CABINET MEMBER UPDATE REPORT
 Overview and Scrutiny Committee (Adult Social Care) - 3 September 2019

Councillor Portfolio Period of Report

Paul Cummins Adult Social Care July/August 2019

Strategic Commissioning

The Commissioning team continues to focus on several key commissioning projects to 
support the Public Sector Reform programme in Adult Social Care (ASC). 

In line with other high performing Councils, the Interim Director of Adult Social Services 
has prioritised a number of areas in order to achieve better outcomes for people needing 
support. These are:

 Supported Living for people with complex needs - a new framework of providers will 
be developed over the coming months and updates will follow through the year.

 Assistive technology -– a  focus on developing a strategy and rolling out different 
types of equipment to support independence.

 Continuous improvement of domiciliary care and development of a rapid response 
service to support people in crisis - this will be delivered by New Directions.

 Ensuring value for money through efficient processes and integrated ways of 
commissioning services with the CCGs.

 Market engagement to promote Dignity in Care and the establishment of a new Care 
Home Forum in partnership with the sector. The inaugural meeting will be held in 
the Atkinson Centre in September.

 Delivery of the capital programme in order to offset demand in services.  For 
example, Disabled Facilities Grant and equipment, capital grant to care homes and 
roll out of equipment to reduce the need to provide 2 domiciliary carers for moving 
and handling in a person’s own home.

The Interim Director will be representing North West ADASS in future NHS Transforming 
Care Programme meetings for the North West which has a specific focus on improving 
health and care services for people with complex learning disability and autism.  

Residential and Nursing Care Sector

A report is being submitted to September Cabinet to provide an update on work taking 
place on the sector.  One element of this is how Sefton will explore linking into a newly 
established Forum which has been set up by a provider.  There is the potential to link into 
this forum so that Sefton can outline issues such as its future commissioning intentions 
etc.  The forum can also be utilised as a mechanism to share good practice, drive service 
quality improvement work and also assist with the promotion of training opportunities.  

Page 51

Agenda Item 7



APPENDIX A
The Cabinet report also seeks approval for the commencement of a pilot for Sefton to 
scope out the potential to amend payment mechanisms to care homes which 
encompasses moving from paying net to paying gross.

Performance Highlights

Following changes made to processes at the ‘front door’ which is the initial contact point 
for Adult Social Care.  There has been a generally improved through-put in most areas and 
a move towards ‘today’s work today’ approach. Some concern remains around 
Occupational Therapy and this area is being actively performance managed to reduce a 
backlog. These changes have also had a positive impact on the demand of referrals 
inappropriately going into the safeguarding team with a reduction in overall caseloads 
being seen in that area.

In general, service demand remains high but teams are managing to ‘stem the tide’ of 
admission into more costly long-term care home support, though in the early part of the 
year there was a slight increase in admissions into home care.  Although this has been 
supporting hospital discharge, and hence delayed transfers of care from acute settings that 
are a responsibility of ASC, these have fallen significantly over the last few months (though 
delays across the whole system including the NHS remain too high nationally).

Regional data suggest that overall quality of care homes based on CQC assessments 
continues to improve with 82% of care home beds in Sefton rated ‘good’ or ‘outstanding’. 
Domiciliary providers also rate well with some 92% of community providers rated ‘good’ or 
‘outstanding’.

Social Work Practice and Personalisation 

Over the last few months the Interim Director of Adult Social Care has been leading the 
Personalisation programme as part of Sefton’s Public Sector Reform workstream. The 
programme included implementing changes to the way social workers assess people who 
need care and support.

This new way of working is called Asset Based practice and will start to be implemented 
from September. All front-line staff have attended a series of training events on Care Act 
principles and asset based social work practice. Social workers will need to be able to 
identify assets in the local communities and neighbourhoods and ensure joined up practice. 
In total over 200 front line staff attended the sessions with additional events offered to 
locality teams.

Social work practice will have a stronger focus on connecting vulnerable people to their 
communities, promoting and maintaining independence rather than automatically 
connecting people to services. This approach compliments Sefton’s locality working and 
will see a more joined up system around the individual.

Service users and social workers have been involved in the co-design of the new system 
and we have utilised national support from Social Care Institute for Excellence.  Further 
updates and briefings will be arranged for members.

Page 52

Agenda Item 7



APPENDIX A

Financial Update 

Revenue

For 2019/20 the revenue budget remains under significant pressure.  A saving of £1.7m is 
required, representing year three of the budgeted personalisation saving. The Interim 
Director of Adult Social Care will need to continue to ensure plans, to both achieve the 
saving and mitigate any increase in demand, are managed robustly. 

The July revenue budget position forecasts a balanced budget for the year. However, there 
are pressures within the Community Care budget; a net £2.9m deficit is currently forecast, 
assuming demand pressures can be negated during the year. Forecast surpluses on 
employee vacancy turnover, Specialist Transport and capitalisation of some community 
equipment go some way to offsetting the deficit on the placements and packages spend. 
However, there remains a budget gap of £1.6m, requiring delivery of the Double to Single 
Handed Care and Assistive Technology projects, which are now underway following the 
agreement of the enabling capital funding and an examination of the full supply chain to 
ensure any efficiencies are maximised and that the budget is balanced for the financial 
year. 

Work will also continue on ensuring all income collectable from the NHS for joint funding 
and Funded Nursing Care arrangements is pursued, and ensuring joint working around 
Continuing Health Care and Children’s Transitions.  Work will also be undertaken to deliver 
and action a strategic commissioning plan to support the redesign of the care market.

Adult Social Care Capital 

The plan for the ‘Wider Social Care’ element of the Disabled Facilities Grant has now been 
agreed with a forecast capital spend of £2.47m in 2019/20 and £3.57m in 2020/21.  The 
planned projects are designed to support and improve service provision and maintain 
independence and include:

 Care home improvement grant of small sums linked to improving dementia 
standards.

 Assistive technology. 
 Developing Sefton’s Extra Care Housing Strategy. 
 Improvement Programme - Complex Needs
 Community Equipment - Adults and Children
 Equipment to support the Double to Single Handed Care project
 ICT development and Transformation

The ‘Core ‘DFG element of the Disabled Facilities Grant agreed for 19/20 is £2.2m and it 
is anticipated there will be increasing take-up of grant for major works and equipment. 

Page 53

Agenda Item 7



APPENDIX A

Page 54

Agenda Item 7



APPENDIX B

CABINET MEMBER UPDATE REPORT
 Overview and Scrutiny Committee (Adult Social Care) - 3 September 2019

Councillor Portfolio Period of Report

Ian Moncur Health and Wellbeing June – Aug 2019

0-19

Sefton’s Integrated 0-19 Healthy Child Programme (HCP), became fully operational on 1st 
April 2017, replacing traditional 0-5 services, Health Visiting and Family Nurse Partnership, 
and School Nursing. The Provider of the service is North West Boroughs Healthcare 
(NWBH).  Public Health has undertaken a consultation exercise with key stakeholders in order 
to:

 To ensure that the Integrated 0-19 HCP is being effectively delivered
 To Inform future commissioning and service Improvement 
 To ensure the 0-19 HCP is accessible to parents and young people
 To understand the experiences of parents and young people who access the service 
 To understand the connectivity between 0-19 HCP and other Children’s Services  

The consultation will:
 Inform future commissioning of the Integrated 0-19 Healthy Child Programme for 

Sefton residents 
 Provide opportunity for key stakeholders including service users to comment on the 

new delivery model

Key Stakeholders: Young People and Parents for whom the service is intended, General 
Practice, Schools/Education, Children’s Social Care, Early Years and Localities, CCG, 
General Practice, NHS England.  

We anticipate an end date for the consultation for end of August 2019; a further update is due 
in the autumn.

Findings will be reported to the Public Engagement and Consultation Panel and key 
stakeholders.

Health Checks

The new Sefton NHS Health Checks Service started with a soft launch in July, utilising a paper 
based system to inform General Practice about findings. 

Key activity has included:-
 Delivery of clinics with bookable appointments which run at a range of community 

venues across the Borough.
 Workplace NHS Health Checks Programme - bookable appointments for Council staff 

over the summer months.
 Wider-workplace offer - A series of workplace events are being planned across the 

borough.
 Wider community offer - there are opportunities to run sessions within a range of 

community centres, such as the Litherland Family Wellbeing Centre, these are 
currently being explored. 

Page 55

Agenda Item 7



APPENDIX B
Additionally, an evaluation of the NHS Health Checks pilot is scheduled to begin in August, 
the lessons learnt from the pilot will be used to enhance the offer.

An information sharing agreement, which would allow the findings form NHS Health Checks 
to be shared with General Practice electronically, is currently being reviewed from a legal and 
information governance perspective. 

Social Prescribing

Social prescribing is part of the ‘The NHS Long Term Plan’ released in January and is about 
linking patients with non-medical issues to support within their community.  GP Practices are 
being encouraged to form into Primary Care Networks (PCN) as part of this local change.  The 
aim being for PCNs to working together with a range of local providers, including across 
primary care, community services, social care and the voluntary sector, to offer more 
personalised, coordinated health and social care to their patients.

Sefton now has 7 PCNs and they have recently agreed in principle to a model of social 
prescribing that has been developed by both CCGs, the Council, Sefton CVS and wider 
partners.  The model works with existing services such as Community Connectors, Living Well 
Sefton, etc and will increase local capacity.  Later this year a new Social Prescribing Link 
Worker will be recruited to each PCN, who will work directly with GPs to deal with any social 
issues affecting patients.  

Seasonal Flu 

The Sefton Flu Planning Group have completed a debriefing session and have begun planning 
for the coming vaccination programme which starts in the autumn. Following an evaluation of 
last year’s programme a key focus is to work with the local NHS England, Screening and 
Immunisation Team, CCGs and General Practices to improve vaccination uptake, with a focus 
on supporting practices with low uptake for the following groups:

 People aged over 65
 People under 65 in an at-risk group
 Children aged 2 and 3

Community Infection Control

The Community Infection Prevention and Control Service has been awarded to Mersey Care 
NHS Foundation Trust, who currently provide the Service, with a new contract due to start 1st 
September 2019.

Public Health Annual Report - Air Quality in Sefton 

The completed Public Health Annual Report animation has been presented at Adult Health 
and Social Care and Children's Overview and Scrutiny and full Council and continues to be 
promoted through other meetings, including through Liverpool City Region Air Quality 
Taskforce. The 11-minute animation can be viewed as a whole but will also be disseminated 
in shorter sections to support our wider, ongoing air quality communications strategy. The key 
messages present a factual, evidence-based picture of air pollution in Sefton - what this means 
for people's health; what we know about local sources of air pollution, and the actions which 
the Council has taken to improve air quality, especially in its hotspot Air Quality Management 
Areas. 

The accessible report sets out the Council's priorities, which will be supported by the ongoing 
work of the Air Quality Cabinet Members Reference Group - improving communications, 
supporting citizen science, continuing work with schools and working with the latest 
information and evidence to make further improvements.  Since improving air quality requires 
multi-sector improvements, there are also calls to action for business, the NHS, the voluntary 
sector and residents. An online fact file provides more information and practical resources. Page 56

Agenda Item 7



APPENDIX B
  

Health and Wellbeing Strategy 

Work is in progress to deliver a new Sefton Health and Wellbeing Strategy for 2020-2025. This 
is a statutory requirement of Health and Wellbeing Boards and is therefore jointly developed 
by the Council, Clinical Commissioning Groups, with input from key e.g. voluntary, community 
and faith sector partners, wider stakeholders and groups and individual residents.  
Engagement is supported by Strategic Support and Sefton Healthwatch.

The final strategy will identify the top priorities from the Joint Strategic Needs Assessment and 
set out collective population health ambitions that health, care and wellbeing services are 
expected to act upon through commissioning, collaboration and wider partnership working.

Following the process used for the current strategy, public engagement will comprise two 
phases - the first online survey asks for views on priorities from the Joint Strategic Needs 
Assessment. Extensive input from the Improving Information Group has helped to develop a 
maximally accessible format. This phase runs from August through early September. A second 
phase 'Talking Health and Wellbeing' will primarily use focus groups to gather further feedback 
on the draft strategy and will take place in October.

Current proposals in development emphasise the importance of an accessible, more narrative 
style, a strong focus on prevention and reducing health inequality, protecting wellbeing as a 
cross-cutting theme and setting high level ambitions across the life span that speak to the 
main, interconnected influences on health - community, 'lifestyle', place and opportunity, and 
health and care services. 

The new Sefton Health and Wellbeing Strategy will be finalised in early December and 
published in early 2020. A progress update will be discussed at formal health and wellbeing 
board on 11 September, including more detail and discussion on the points above, supporting 
governance and policy products and in particular key ambitions. 

Southport Money Advice Group

This group was established as part of a large-scale, five-year research project involving 
collaborators in local authority areas along the North West Coast working on several research 
strands. The Southport Money Advice Group (SMAG) is a Neighbourhood for Learning Site 
(NfL). NfLs bring together academics, resident advisers, service providers, a voluntary sector 
facilitator and Council Officers with the aim of creating a stronger, more connected support 
system that can responds to needs, which may not have been voiced or fully recognised 
previously. SMAG NfL is working on the issue of debt and money advice in Central Southport. 
Researchers are interested in finding out about the value and challenges of adopting the NfL 
approach and these insights will inform evidence and guidance that other areas can use.

On 27 March the group hosted a Learning Exchange Event at Lakeside Church. The aims of 
the event were to:-
- explain about the NfL idea
- give information about the links between wealth, debt and health
- share money advice best practice based on health behaviours theory
- help organisations and referrers find out more about one another
- motivate learning into action

43 people attended from 17 organisations. Three quarters wanted to find out more about the 
SMAG group and evaluation of the event showed most people took away significant new 
learning and had made plans to share this and make changes to their working practices, e.g. 
considering a wider range of referral options, implementing The Money Advice Service Top 
Ten Tips, and investing in relationships between services.

Page 57

Agenda Item 7



APPENDIX B
Following this event, SMAG members have added to their network of connections, been asked 
to develop a training video on the experience of seeking debt advice, and developed a review 
of the Money Matters section of the Sefton Directory. Subsequently, SMAG members also 
participated in a workshop about their work at the national Local Authority Research and 
Intelligence conference. An update to Welfare Reform and Action Against Poverty Cabinet 
Member Reference Group will explore learning and wider applicability of the NfL approach.

Suicide Update

Suicides are a rare event and there is inherent variability in the number occurring each year.  
Nationally the number of suicides registered for England fell by 3% in 2017.  Within Sefton 
suicides have showed a significant reduction to 15 when compared to the 27 in the previous 
year, however it is still higher than the lowest recorded figure of 14 in 2007. 

Using standardised rates over a larger time period (usually three years) allows for meaningful 
comparison between areas and time periods. The three-year standardised rate for Sefton was 
6.34 deaths per 100,000 of the population in 2007-09 but rose year on year to 12.2 per 100,000 
in 2014-16.  During this period Sefton’s rate changed from being below to above the England 
rate and the new 2015-17 rate shows the first sign of a reduction in this rate.  

Place Based Social Action

Place-Based Social Action (PBSA) is a national programme jointly funded by the Department 
for Digital, Culture, Media and Sport (DCMS) and Big Lottery Fund. A 3-year PBSA 
programme for Sefton is being developed under the leadership of Safe Regeneration - a social 
enterprise based in Bootle.  Social action is about people coming together to help improve 
their lives and solve the problems that are important in their communities.  It involves people 
giving their time and other resources for the common good.  

A local calendar of activities is being created by local partners - primarily from the voluntary 
community and faith sector.  Resources for some of these activities will be provided by the 
local PBSA fund.  The Council’s involvement has been that of a background partner – 
providing support and advice when necessary and support with communications - and no 
funding has been or will be provided.  It is envisaged that PBSA activities in 2020 will contribute 
to the Borough of Culture celebration in Sefton.

Recreational Running Pathway

The report provided an update on the progress of Sefton’s recreational running pathways 
linked to both local and national initiatives. Our recreational running pathway is looking to 
reduce the costs associated with physical inactivity, which costs £7.4 billion per year and is 
the fourth largest cause of disease and disability, leading to 1/5 deaths in the UK.  However, 
Sport England’s recent ‘Active Lives’ report revealed that in Sefton we are making strides 
towards reducing inactivity, with the highest % increase in the North West and 6th highest in 
the UK.
  
Active Sefton have developed a recreational running pathway to cater for all abilities to 
improve physical fitness and wellbeing. This has involved supporting national initiatives such 
as parkrun to become established and embedded in the community, with local GP practices 
also signing up to be ‘parkrun practices’, prescribing parkrun rather than medication. There 
are currently three Saturday morning 5k park runs; Crosby (Crosby Marina), which averages 
123 participants each week, Southport (Hesketh Park), which averages 302 participants per 
week, and Kew Woods, which was added at the end of 2018 and averages 79 participants per 
week.  There are also advanced plans for a Sunday morning 2k junior parkrun at Derby Park, 
Bootle (which will be for 4-14 year olds) and early discussions relating to a parkrun or junior 
parkrun in Formby.

Locally, ten-week Couch to 5k programmes take place at Litherland Sports Park and Hesketh 
Park, delivered by coaches from the Active Sports team. These cater for adults and families Page 58

Agenda Item 7



APPENDIX B
of all fitness levels to build up their progress week by week, leading to a ‘graduation’ parkrun 
at Crosby or Southport after the tenth week.

A key event as part of Active Workforce’s offering is an annual 5k at Crosby Lakeside. 
Participants can enter as an individual or as a team of 5 to compete to run, walk or stroll around 
Crosby Marina. This event is promoted through both parkrun and Couch to 5k networks as an 
exit route and opportunity to engage other audiences into running.

There are also many local running groups and clubs who have weekly sessions for all abilities 
and distances. These link into parkrun by often providing volunteers, as well as progression 
to longer distances and wider occasions to run, and all of which there are strong links with to 
complete the recreational running pathway.

Aspiring Instructors Programme 2019

The report provided an update on the success of this year’s Aspiring Instructors Programme, 
a 16-week course that enables individuals to achieve qualifications and experience to deliver 
sport and fitness across a variety of settings. The programme is enhanced through the delivery 
of a wide range of employability and transferable skills training sessions to support individuals 
with future employment. Applicants must be residents of Sefton and in previous years be 
unemployed, however, the criteria for this year’s programme was widened to enable 
individuals to take part that were both looking for employment or a career change.

2019 was the 6th year that Aspiring Instructors has been delivered and included a wider range 
of partners.  43 people engaged in the recruitment stage, with 20 people enrolling on the 
programme.  Those not offered places were signposted to other services and opportunities 
across Sefton for further help, support and advice.

The new partnership with the Department for Work and Pensions (DWP) and Merseyrail had 
a significant impact on the programme and enabled barriers to be removed that previous 
caused stumbling blocks for participants. Merseyrail train passes enabled free travel across 
Sefton for the duration of the programme, which enabled participants to attend all 6 Active 
Sefton leisure centres for additional training 7 days a week.  It provided participants with 
flexibility and ensured that the cost of travel was not a barrier. 

DWP’s contribution to the programme included £20,000 funding, in addition to individual 
support given to participants who were in receipt of benefits and could receive individual 
financial support, ranging from funding for kit and travel through to childcare costs. 

Additional funding also came from the Councils Community Adult Education Service, with 
Sefton@work providing officer time and support for different elements of the programme.  
Active Sefton provided free Activate fitness memberships for the duration of the programme, 
officer time to manage and coordinate the programme and free facility and room use 
throughout.

The course involves participants choosing one of three pathways; lifeguarding, gym instructor 
or water sports, where they will gain an extensive list of qualifications relevant to that pathway.  
This year saw some participants qualify in more than one pathway, with each receiving a 
completely holistic and bespoke approach.

The outcomes achieved had a significant impact on the individuals and whilst there was a 
huge success in terms of the qualifications achieved, some of the biggest achievements have 
been the retention rate, the barriers removed and the support provided and the improvements 
in mental well-being, resilience, independence, confidence and empowerment. 

Of the 20 participants that started 3 left the programme before completion.  2 of these entered 
full time employment and 1 was placed on hold because of personal circumstances.  The 
remaining 17 participants had the following outcomes:-

 120 qualifications gained. Page 59

Agenda Item 7



APPENDIX B
 A 65% employment rate 1-week post programme, expected to further grow over the next 

month due to follow up and support from Sefton@work.
 Increased confidence - all participants cited and staff observed huge increases in 

confidence.
 Increase in mental wellbeing - 1 participant shared that 6 months prior he had attempted 

to take his own life and felt that this course gave him purpose and goals for the future. 
 Physical health gains. 
 Friendship and peer support, which has continued post-programme. 

 

Plans are already being drawn up for next year’s programme. 

Leisure Performance quarterly update and Litherland lighting 

This report provided an update on current achievements and key issues for April-June 2019 
under the following headings:

1. Early Intervention and Prevention:

Active Sports:
Using sport, physical activity and healthy lifestyle interventions amongst others, the 
Active Sports team delivers programmes to improve health and wellbeing, promote 
social inclusion, reduce crime and antisocial behaviour through youth diversionary 
work, in addition to working alongside education and early help / family wellbeing 
service. Achievements include:

- 119 leisure passes issued through referrals from Children’s Social Care.
- Successful delivery of the Friday night Kicks Programme, in partnership with 

Liverpool Football Club Foundation, with an average of 20 participants per session 
and 60 young people in attendance at a ‘Real Men Don’t Carry Knives’ workshop 
delivered by Anfield boxing club.

- Completion of the Aspiring Instructors Programme, celebrating the 17 participants 
who completed a water sports, gym instructor, lifeguarding or dual pathway 
qualification. 

- 76 sessions delivered through Be Active for reception age to 12-year-old children, 
with 1208 participants attending. 

- Continuation of all community sessions, which contribute towards the team income 
target of £81,000.

- Launch of the new 121 Progamme, which is a physical activity programme 
designed to improve the health and wellbeing of Sefton’s young people (aged 11-
19) who may need support.  The project is designed to use weekly physical activity 
or sport sessions to have a positive impact on the young person’s health and 
wellbeing using development workers as mentors, as well as helping them feel able 
to engage in dialogue about issues that may be affecting them.  There has been 23 
young people engaged or referred on to the programme and conversations to 
expand it further (capacity dependent) to children and young people that are on the 
cusp of antisocial behavior or within families where domestic violence has been 
identified.

- The team have seen an increase in contact from organisations who are seeking 
support for their young people.  

- The section also celebrated the contribution of the local sporting community in June 
through the annual Sports Awards function. 

2. Health and Wellbeing Delivery

MOVE IT:
Funded by Public Health, MOVE IT encourages both physical activity and healthy eating 
advice by providing the tools to allow families to be able to make healthier choices and 
adopt a healthier lifestyle. Available for overweight and obese children aged 5-16 years 
and their families, MOVE IT is delivered in the community.

Page 60

Agenda Item 7



APPENDIX B

MOVE IT received 47 referrals within the quarter April – June 2019, which is an increase 
compared to 31 referrals received in the previous year.  For those referrals received 
51% were deprived wards.  87% of MOVE IT completers showed an increase in 
improved mental wellbeing along with physical health gains.

Active Ageing:
During this quarter and after the submission of a business case, it was confirmed that 
the funding for this service will be continued for a further 12-months.  The Falls 
Prevention ‘Active Ageing’ programme is for South Sefton residents over the age of 65 
who have or are at risk of falling.  
Commissioned by South Sefton CCG and delivered by the Active Sefton Team, the main 
aim of the programme is to focus on the strength and balance of older residents whilst 
also educating them on topics that will reduce the risk of falls. The service is also 
designed to reduce social isolation, encourage interaction and ensure that our older 
residents maintain their confidence, independence and a high quality of life. 

Active Ageing received 32 referrals within April - June 2019.  Of those, 100% improved 
their ‘timed up and go’ score, an assessment tool used to measure basic functional 
mobility and safety pre and post programme.  Improvements in the timed up and go 
score mean that the risk of falling is decreased.  83% of those who completed the Active 
Ageing programme within the quarter of April - June 2019 reported that their fear of 
falling has decreased. Talks from speakers have also been incorporated within the 
programme to educate and improve confidence around the fear of falling.  Organisations 
include the Fire Service, nutrition talks, medicines management and affordable warmth. 

Active Lifestyles GP Referral Programme:
The Active Lifestyles Exercise Referral Programme aims to provide the whole 
community with the opportunity to live a more active and healthy lifestyle. The 
programme offers a range of lifestyle services for all Sefton Residents who are 
overweight or obese, or suffer with/are at risk of developing Coronary Heart Disease 
(CHD) and associated risk factors.  The core focus of the programme is improving 
physical health and mental well-being through an increase in physical activity. This 
programme works in conjunction with weight management services to reduce weight 
and encourage healthy eating. 

The Exercise Referral programme received 880 referrals within the quarter April - June 
2019.  Along with a range of physical health benefits including weight loss, 71% of 
people who completed the programme improved their mental wellbeing.  The service 
made 934 signposts into partner organisations i.e. Living Well Sefton, who then work 
with link workers using a social prescribing approach.  335 of these signposts have 
continued with our services such as attending gym or other community based activities.

NHS Health Checks:
The NHS Health Checks Service is a statutory programme delivered locally by the 
Active Lifestyles team to eligible adults aged 40-74.  It is designed to spot early signs of 
stroke, kidney disease, heart disease or type 2-diabetes and to help find ways for 
individuals to lower their risk.  It is primarily offered to people in Sefton, who have a 
registered Sefton GP, without a pre-existing condition and who have not had a Health 
Check in 5 years.

The Active Lifestyles team have delivered 80 Health Checks within the quarter April - 
June 2019.  Since then clinics have been set up within Magdalen House for Sefton 
Employees with July and August virtually full.  There has been 10 clinics delivered 
including 3 schools, Bootle Job Centre and 6 clinics within Crosby Library and Dunes 
Splash World.

Weight Management Offer:
The Weight Management Service (formally Diets Don’t Work) is currently being 
redesigned as a 6-week educational group programme and the offer of 1-1 specialist Page 61

Agenda Item 7



APPENDIX B
support.   The new and updated programme will cover all localities within Sefton and will 
also be delivered by our Living Well Sefton partners in the Brighter Living Centre, 
Feelgood Factory and May Logan Centre, with mentoring support from the Active 
Lifestyles Team. During the summer, all staff that are delivering or supporting the service 
will undergo the training:  

Active Workforce: 
Active Workforce aims to improve the health and wellbeing of employees by way of 
breaking down all barriers leading to improved physical and mental wellbeing. This 
includes exercise classes, health checks, challenges and courses within the workplace 
at no or subsidised costs. 

There is also a referral programme available for staff suffering with medical conditions 
or absent from work due to sickness, subsidised costs for leisure centre memberships 
for staff, friends and family, sports leagues and a full annual event and team building 
programme.  

Commissioned by a variety of organisations as well as a £20k contribution from Public 
Health, workplaces include Sefton Council (including Sefton’s schools), The Walton 
Centre, Mersey Care NHS Foundation Trust, Stanley High, Greenbank, Kew Woods, 
Churchtown Primary, Range High, Chesterfield and St. Michaels, which together employ 
over 13,000 staff.  Services delivered through Active Workforce are an integral part of 
the physical activity, healthy eating and mental wellbeing standards in the Workplace 
Wellbeing Charter for the Council.  

Active Workforce are leading the delivery of a programme set up by the British Heart 
Foundation, focussing on blood pressure measurements in the workplace. 

From a delivery perspective, Active Workforce use onsite activities based around the 
working day to break down the barriers to exercise and encourage participation. These 
include exercise classes, nutrition courses, workplace challenges, health seminars, 
health checks and lunchtime walks all organised during lunchtime, before or after 
working hours.  865 Sefton staff have engaged in Apr-Jun 2019, with significant 
improvements in all aspects of physical and mental wellbeing. 

The annual events programme so far this year has included the 5K Challenge, Mixed 
Netball Tournament, Mixed Football Tournament, Duathlon, a Group Mountain Walk and 
the Wipeout Challenge, which have collectively engaged 702 people.

3. Commercial viability

Dunes Splash World:
Dunes Splash World continues to perform both regionally and locally with Splash World 
attracting over 100,000 visitors per year, over 2,200 active fitness members, over 60 
fitness classes per week and over 500 weekly swimmers. 

Income and visitor numbers have decreased at Splash World by £54, 000 compared to 
the same period last year. The pool tile defect repairs and resultant sections of pool 
being closed has reduced the centres ability to fulfil capacity and customers have likely 
opted to go elsewhere over this period.  As with neighbouring attractions such as the 
Sandcastle and Rhyl Sun Centre, Splash World is need of refurbishment to maintain its 
position in the marketplace. For which a plan will be developed.

Crosby Lakeside: 
One key focus area for Crosby Lakeside has been to maintain social value projects 
whilst simultaneously operating a commercial outdoor residential activity centre, fitness 
provision and hospitality offering. 

Page 62

Agenda Item 7



APPENDIX B
May 2019 was one of the activities teams busiest to date, seeing a like for like increase 
from 2018 of over an additional 400 participants engaging and over 70 more instructor 
led sessions.  The Centre took delivery of 4 family themed electric hire boats, which in 
1 day had 45 hires and assisted in increasing footfall and secondary spend through the 
Bistro.  There has also been a significant increase in the number of National Governing 
Body accredited courses. 

The Hospitality Team have seen a busy events season so far with a large number of 
functions every month. 

The fitness suite continues to operate at full occupancy thanks to its class timetable and 
the introduction of new initiatives including SUP (Stand Up Paddleboard) Yoga, Early 
morning Sunrise and late-night sunset boot camps.  The Fitness Suite has increased its 
membership from 1586 to 1700 for the same period last year.  

Meadows Leisure Centre and Library
Meadows Health and Fitness continues to be the most successful fitness suite, 
increasing from 3747 to 4282 members since this time last year. To ensure that the 
centre maintains its offer there has been investments made, including totally refurbished 
changing rooms, new free weights area floor to enable new gym layout and brand-new 
state of the art spin bikes.

Swimming at Meadows is proving popular for casual swimming, club swimming or as 
part of the extensive swimming lesson programme.  The after-school programme has 
141 lessons per week, with over 1,000 children attending and 350 children on the waiting 
list.  There are also 24 schools utilising Meadows, with 35 swimming lesson slots and of 
750-800 children per week

The Frank Hornby Visitor Centre has had a noticeable increase in footfall and interest 
since it was relocated, with visitors from Australia and Germany.

 
Litherland Sports Park
LSP has been identified within the playing pitch strategy as a site that will accommodate 
two new 3G pitches and will be Sefton’s football academy.  It will support the playing 
pitch strategy in the development of football within the borough and ease the end of 
season backlog of fixtures due to bad weather during the winter.

LSP has had some real maintenance issues, including issues with the lighting of the all-
weather pitch and track and the surface of the sand filled all-weather pitch.  The football 
foundation has indicated that they are only interested in supporting two new 3G pitches 
as part of the playing pitch strategy.  The maintenance issues could only be supported 
via another fund, which can only be accessed via the onsite club Remeca FC, who are 
reluctant due to their own developments over the next 5 years.  The issue with the lights 
could cost between £60,000 if managed internally or up to £100,000 plus if contracted 
in.  The surface would cost between £155,000 to £170,000.  A decision on the 
replacement of the lights and surface needs to be considered.

Netherton Activity Centre
Netherton Activity Centre’s transformation into a community hub has been very 
successful.  The integration of the different teams within the facility are helping to support 
the community with different services on their doorstep.  Feedback from the community 
has been very positive and the integration is supporting the early intervention agenda 
well. 

Bootle Leisure Centre 
Bootle Leisure Centre has made a number of improvements to its fitness facility.  The 
replacement of flooring (at a cost of £7, 000) and the soon to be replaced exercise 
machines, which are beyond economic repair, will assist the facilities longevity and 
maintain memberships and income targets.

Page 63

Agenda Item 7



APPENDIX B
There have been several maintenance issues at BLC.  The site has encountered pump 
failures, invertor issues and AHU (air handling unit) problems over the last 2 months, 
which has impacted on the premises and supplies budget. 

Current fitness members for June 2019 is 2427, which is a 471 increase on the same 
period last year. 

MECC training is scheduled for July for several key staff; customer service assistants, 
fitness instructors and leisure attendants.

 
Cardiac Rehabilitation (through Aintree Hospital) have confirmed their booking of the 
centre for the next 12-months to continue the delivery of the service in the community.

4. Budget Performance

The budget performance to the end of June 2019 is disappointing.  Compared to June 
2018 there is a £307,495 difference in position.  
There was a credit of £158, 232 at this period in 2018 (positive budget position) 
compared to a debit of £149,263 in 2019 (negative budget position). 

Areas of concern are premises (due to the maintenance issues raised throughout this 
report), an overspend on supplies and a decrease in income, partly due to maintenance 
issues and due to the reduction in bookings at CLAC because of the development.

5. Future Developments

The section has begun to work more strategically with Locality colleagues with a remit 
around Family Wellbeing, Community Safety, domestic violence and youth offending 
with a view to looking into more opportunities for joint working and potential expansion 
of services.

Following the Leisure review, which saw the departure of a sectional manager 
responsible for health and fitness, work will commence to bring together the functions of 
health and fitness and health and wellbeing (through public health commissioned 
services) to improve the sections offer and help build capacity in the workforce.

To maintain its position in the marketplace, it is necessary for Dunes Splash World to 
formalise plans to refurbish and refresh Splash World.  Work will begin on these 
workplans during the following quarter and beyond.

Because of the maintenance issues highlighted, work will need to be undertaken at 
Dunes (due to the tiles issue), Litherland (lighting issue) and Bootle Leisure (flooring, 
pump failure and air handling issues), all of which have impacted on the current budget 
position.  Work will also be progressed on the football project at Litherland Sports Park 
as part of the Playing Pitch strategy. 

Sports Awards 2019 update
The report provided an update on Sefton Sports Awards 2019 and plans for 2020.

Since 2002 Active Sefton have held Sefton Sports Awards to celebrate the very best of the 
sporting offer with categories celebrating the outstanding talent and commitment of local 
athletes, coaches, volunteers, clubs and schools. 

In 2019 there were 62 nominations received across 15 award categories, which an 
independent judging panel (including representatives from Active Sefton, Sefton Sports 
Council, Merseyside Sport, Aiming High and School games organisers) assessed and 
selected the winners. 

The Sports Awards saw a number of changes in 2019.  Alongside the addition of new awards, 
the event saw the introduction of a new compere, Leanne Campbell (Radio City presenter and Page 64

Agenda Item 7



APPENDIX B
local resident) to host the evening and revitalise the delivery of the awards. A guest speaker 
was also secured, Andy Grant, who left the audience completely captivated by his stories.

This year support was enlisted from Christian Rodgers (Head of Commercial Development), 
who helped secure £750 sponsorship from new sponsors, including Abode and Bliss.  Stephen 
Watson (Executive Director) also enlisted the support of Southport Pleasureland by sending 
the information through to Southport BID.  A large amount of expenditure was also saved by 
contacting suppliers on the print framework to produce materials as in-kind contributions.  This 
successfully led to CDP producing all marketing materials, with all programmes produced in-
kind by Sonnex.

286 guests attended the evening and generally there was positive feedback, except for sound 
issues.  Nearly a £5,000 shift has been made in terms of expenditure v income between 2018 
to 2019.  £717 was raised through the raffle, which will be administered by Active Sefton as a 
bursary scheme to budding athletes. 

Regarding plan for next year, the following will be considered:-

- Discussions relating to the involvement or coordination of the event with Sefton Sports 
Council.

- The location of the awards, based on feedback of the event being based in the North year 
on year.

- Further involvement of Leanne Campbell, who has indicated how she would like to 
support the event with its profile, the standards of production and potential guest 
speakers.

- How the event can be tied in to the Borough of Culture year.

Page 65

Agenda Item 7



This page is intentionally left blank



Report to: Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee

(Adult Social Care 
and Health)

Date of Meeting: 3 September 2019

Subject: Work Programme 2019/20, Scrutiny Review Topics and Key 
Decision Forward Plan

Report of: Chief Legal and 
Democratic Officer

Wards Affected: All

Cabinet Portfolio: Adult Social Care and Health and Wellbeing
Is this a Key 
Decision:

No Included in 
Forward Plan:

No

Exempt / 
Confidential 
Report:

No

Summary:

To seek the views of the Committee on its Work Programme for the remainder of the 
Municipal Year 2019/20; and identify any items for pre-scrutiny scrutiny by the 
Committee from the Key Decision Forward Plan.

Recommendations:

That:- 

(1) the Work Programme for 2019/20, as set out in Appendix A to the report, be 
considered, along with any additional items to be included and thereon be 
agreed; and

(2) the Committee is requested to consider items for pre-scrutiny from the Key 
Decision Forward Plan as set out in Appendix B to the report, which fall under 
the remit of the Committee and any agreed items be included in the work 
programme referred to in (1) above.

Reasons for the Recommendation(s):

To determine the Work Programme of items to be considered during the Municipal Year 
2019/20; identify any scrutiny review topics which would demonstrate that the work of the 
Overview and Scrutiny “adds value” to the Council; and update on work that falls under 
the remit of the Committee.

The pre-scrutiny process assists Cabinet Members to make effective decisions by 
examining issues before making formal decisions.

Page 67

Agenda Item 8



Alternative Options Considered and Rejected: (including any Risk Implications)

No alternative options have been considered as the Overview and Scrutiny Committee 
needs to approve its Work Programme and identify scrutiny review topics.

What will it cost and how will it be financed?

There are no direct financial implications arising from this report. Any financial 
implications arising from the consideration of a key decision or relating to a 
recommendation arising from a Working Group review will be reported to Members at the 
appropriate time.

(A) Revenue Costs – see above

(B) Capital Costs – see above

Implications of the Proposals:

Resource Implications (Financial, IT, Staffing and Assets): None

Legal Implications: None

Equality Implications: There are no equality implications. 

Contribution to the Council’s Core Purpose:

Protect the most vulnerable: None directly applicable to this report but reference in 
the Work Programme to the approval of and monitoring of recommendations relating 
to this Purpose will help to protect vulnerable members of Sefton’s communities.

Facilitate confident and resilient communities: None directly applicable to this report 

Commission, broker and provide core services: None directly applicable to this report 

Place – leadership and influencer: None directly applicable to this report.

Drivers of change and reform: None directly applicable to this report 

Facilitate sustainable economic prosperity: None directly applicable to this report 

Greater income for social investment: None directly applicable to this report 

Cleaner Greener: None directly applicable to this report 

What consultations have taken place on the proposals and when?

(A) Internal Consultations

Page 68

Agenda Item 8



The Work Programme and Key Decision Forward Plan Report is not subject to FD/LD 
consultation. Any specific financial and legal implications arising from the consideration 
of a key decision will be subsequently reported to Members in an appropriate manner.

(B) External Consultations 

Not applicable

Implementation Date for the Decision

Immediately following the Committee meeting.

Contact Officer: Debbie Campbell
Telephone Number: 0151 934 2254
Email Address: debbie.campbell@sefton.gov.uk 

Appendices:

The following appendices are attached to this report:-

 Appendix A - Work Programme for 2018/19;
 Appendix B - Latest Key Decision Forward Plan items relating to this Overview 

and Scrutiny Committee

Background Papers:

There are no background papers available for inspection.

Introduction/Background

1. WORK PROGRAMME 2019/20

1.1 The Work Programme of items to be submitted to the Committee for consideration 
during the remainder of the Municipal Year 2019/20 is attached at Appendix A to 
the report. The programme has been produced in liaison with the appropriate Heads 
of Service, whose roles fall under the remit of the Committee.

1.2 Members are requested to consider whether there are any other items that they 
wish the Committee to consider, that fall within the terms of reference of the 
Committee. The Work Programme will be submitted to each meeting of the 
Committee during 2019/20 and updated, as appropriate. 

1.3 The Committee is requested to comment on the Work Programme for the 
remainder of 2019/20, as appropriate, and note that additional items may be 
submitted to the Programme at future meetings of the Committee during 
this Municipal Year.

Page 69

Agenda Item 8

mailto:debbie.campbell@sefton.gov.uk


2. PRE-SCRUTINY OF ITEMS IN THE KEY DECISION FORWARD PLAN

2.1 Members may request to pre-scrutinise items from the Key Decision Forward Plan 
which fall under the remit (terms of reference) of this Committee. The Forward 
Plan, which is updated each month, sets out the list of items to be submitted to the 
Cabinet for consideration during the next four-month period.

2.2 The pre-scrutiny process assists the Cabinet Members to make effective 
decisions by examining issues beforehand and making recommendations prior to 
a determination being made.

2.3 The Overview and Scrutiny Management Board has requested that only those key 
decisions that fall under the remit of each Overview and Scrutiny Committee 
should be included on the agenda for consideration.

2.4 The latest Forward Plan is attached at Appendix B for this purpose. For ease of 
identification, items listed on the Forward Plan for the first time appear as shaded. 

2.5 There are 6 items within the current Plan that falls under the remit of the Committee 
on this occasion, namely:-

 Domiciliary Care Tender;
 Adult Social Care - Residential & Nursing Care Sector;
 Community Substance Use: Assessment, Treatment and Recovery Service;
 New Directions Contract;
 Section 75 Agreement; and
 The Health and Wellbeing Strategy 2020-2025.

2.6 Should Members require further information in relation to any item on the Key 
Decision Forward Plan, would they please contact the relevant Officer named 
against the item in the Plan, prior to the Meeting.

2.7 The next Key Decision Forward Plan, for the period 1 October 2019 – 31 January 
2020, will be published on 30 August 2019. Any new items that fall under the remit 
of this Committee will be circulated to Members in due course.

2.8 The Committee is invited to consider items for pre-scrutiny from the Key 
Decision Forward Plan, as set out in Appendix B to the report, which fall 
under the remit of the Committee and any agreed items be included in the 
Work Programme referred to in (1) above.

Page 70

Agenda Item 8



APPENDIX A

1
23/08/19

OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE (ADULT SOCIAL CARE AND HEALTH)

WORK PROGRAMME 2019/20

Date of Meeting 25 JUNE 19
Bootle

03 SEPTEMBER 19
Southport

15 OCTOBER 19
Bootle

07 JANUARY 20
Southport

25 FEBRUARY 20
Bootle

Regular Reports:-
Cabinet Member Update Report
(Julie Leahair/Julie Eliot/Debbie Campbell)

X X X X X

Work Programme Update
(Debbie Campbell)

X X X X X

CCGs’ Update Report
(CCGs)

X X X X X

Health Provider Performance Dashboard
(CCGs)

X X X X X

Service Operational Reports:-
Public Health Annual Report
(Matt Ashton/Helen Armitage)

X

Effectiveness of Local Authority Overview & 
Scrutiny Committees – Government Response 
to DCLG Select Committee Report
(Paul Fraser)

X

The Health and Wellbeing Strategy 2020 – 2025
(Ellie Moulton)

X

P
age 71

A
genda Item

 8



APPENDIX A

2
23/08/19

Item 25 JUNE 19 03 SEPTEMBER 19 15 OCTOBER 19 07 JANUARY 20 25 FEBRUARY 20
JSNA
(Wayne Leatherbarrow)

X

Draft Quality Accounts - Process to be 
Undertaken for 2020
(Debbie Campbell)

X

CCGs’ Updates
Review of 7 Day GP Extended Access Scheme 
(Invite Providers & Include Heat Map of Sefton 
with location of GP Practices & Correlating 
Referrals)
(CCGs)

X

Five Year Plan for Sefton (NHS Planning 
Guidance)
(CCGs)

X X

NHS Updates:-
Southport & Ormskirk Hospital NHS Trust X

Aintree University Hospital NHS Foundation 
Trust
(15/10/19 to be confirmed)

X X

Mersey Care NHS Foundation Trust
(To be confirmed)

X

P
age 72

A
genda Item

 8



APPENDIX B

1

SEFTON METROPOLITAN BOROUGH COUNCIL 
FORWARD PLAN

FOR THE FOUR MONTH PERIOD 1 SEPTEMBER 2019 - 31 DECEMBER 2019

This Forward Plan sets out the details of the key decisions which the Cabinet, individual Cabinet 
Members or Officers expect to take during the next four month period.  The Plan is rolled forward 
every month and is available to the public at least 28 days before the beginning of each month.

A Key Decision is defined in the Council's Constitution as:

1. any Executive decision that is not in the Annual Revenue Budget and Capital Programme 
approved by the Council and which requires a gross budget expenditure, saving or virement 
of more than £100,000 or more than 2% of a Departmental budget, whichever is the 
greater;

2. any Executive decision where the outcome will have a significant impact on a significant 
number of people living or working in two or more Wards

Anyone wishing to make representations about any of the matters listed below may do so by 
contacting the relevant officer listed against each Key Decision, within the time period indicated.

Under the Access to Information Procedure Rules set out in the Council's Constitution, a Key 
Decision may not be taken, unless:

 it is published in the Forward Plan;
 5 clear days have lapsed since the publication of the Forward Plan; and
 if the decision is to be taken at a meeting of the Cabinet, 5 clear days notice of the meeting 

has been given.

The law and the Council's Constitution provide for urgent key decisions to be made, even though 
they have not been included in the Forward Plan in accordance with Rule 26 (General Exception) 
and Rule 28 (Special Urgency) of the Access to Information Procedure Rules.

Copies of the following documents may be inspected at the Town Hall, Oriel Road, Bootle L20 
7AE or accessed from the Council's website: www.sefton.gov.uk 

 Council Constitution
 Forward Plan
 Reports on the Key Decisions to be taken
 Other documents relating to the proposed decision may be submitted to the decision making 

meeting and these too will be made available by the contact officer named in the Plan
 The minutes for each Key Decision, which will normally be published within 5 working days 

after having been made

Some reports to be considered by the Cabinet/Council may contain exempt information and will 
not be made available to the public. The specific reasons (Paragraph No(s)) why such reports are 
exempt are detailed in the Plan and the Paragraph No(s) and descriptions are set out below:-

Page 73

Agenda Item 8

http://www.sefton.gov.uk/


APPENDIX B

2

1. Information relating to any individual
2. Information which is likely to reveal the identity of an individual
3. Information relating to the financial or business affairs of any particular person (including the 

 authority holding that information)
4. Information relating to any consultations or negotiations, or contemplated consultations or        
negotiations in connection with any labour relations matter  arising between the authority or a 
Minister of the Crown and employees of, or office holders under, the Authority
5. Information in respect of which a claim to legal professional privilege could be maintained in 
legal proceedings
6. Information which reveals that the authority proposes a) to give under any enactment a notice 
under or by virtue of which requirements are imposed  on a person; or b) to make an order or 
direction under any enactment
7. Information relating to any action taken or to be taken in connection with the prevention, 
investigation or prosecution of crime
8. Information falling within paragraph 3 above is not exempt information by virtue of that paragraph if it is 
required to be registered under—

(a) the Companies Act 1985;
(b) the Friendly Societies Act 1974;
(c) the Friendly Societies Act 1992;
(d) the Industrial and Provident Societies Acts 1965 to 1978;
(e) the Building Societies Act 1986; or
(f) the Charities Act 1993.

9.Information is not exempt information if it relates to proposed development for which the local planning 
authority may grant itself planning permission pursuant to regulation 3 of the Town and Country Planning 
General Regulations 1992
10. Information which—

(a) falls within any of paragraphs 1 to 7 above; and
(b) is not prevented from being exempt by virtue of paragraph 8 or 9 above,is exempt information if 

and so long, as in all the circumstances of the case, the public interest in maintaining the exemption 
outweighs the public interest in disclosing the information.

Members of the public are welcome to attend meetings of the Cabinet and Council which are held 
at the Town Hall, Oriel Road, Bootle or the Town Hall, Lord Street, Southport.  The dates and 
times of the meetings are published on www.sefton.gov.uk or you may contact the Democratic 
Services Section on telephone number 0151 934 2068.

NOTE:  
For ease of identification, items listed within the document for the first time will appear shaded.

Dwayne Johnson
Chief Executive

Page 74

Agenda Item 8

http://www.sefton.gov.uk/


APPENDIX B

3

FORWARD PLAN INDEX OF ITEMS

Item Heading Officer Contact
Domiciliary Care Tender Neil Watson neil.watson@sefton.gov.uk 

Tel: 0151 934 3744
Adult Social Care - Residential & Nursing Care 
Sector

Neil Watson neil.watson@sefton.gov.uk 
Tel: 0151 934 3744

Community Substance Use: Assessment, 
Treatment and Recovery Service

Alan McGee alan.mcgee@sefton.gov.uk

New Directions Contract Neil Watson neil.watson@sefton.gov.uk 
Tel: 0151 934 3744

Section 75 Agreement Eleanor Moulton 
eleanor.moulton@sefton.gov.uk

The Health and Wellbeing Strategy 2020-2025 Eleanor Moulton 
eleanor.moulton@sefton.gov.uk

Page 75

Agenda Item 8



APPENDIX B

4

SEFTON METROPOLITAN BOROUGH COUNCIL 
FORWARD PLAN

Details of Decision to be taken Domiciliary Care Tender  
To seek approval to commence a procurement exercise to 
secure new Lead Providers in two Sefton areas.

Decision Maker Cabinet

Decision Expected 5 Sep 2019 

Key Decision Criteria Financial Yes Community 
Impact

Yes

Exempt Report Open

Wards Affected Church; Derby; Ford; Linacre; Litherland; St. Oswald; 
Victoria

Scrutiny Committee Area Adult Social Care

Persons/Organisations to be 
Consulted 

Officers, key stakeholders and Cabinet Member – Adult 
Social Care 

Method(s) of Consultation Meetings, emails and Cabinet Member briefings.

List of Background Documents 
to be Considered by Decision-
maker

Domiciliary Care Tender

Contact Officer(s) details Neil Watson neil.watson@sefton.gov.uk Tel: 0151 934 3744

SEFTON METROPOLITAN BOROUGH COUNCIL 
FORWARD PLAN

Details of Decision to be taken Adult Social Care - Residential & Nursing Care Sector  
To update Cabinet on work taking place on this sector and 
to seek approval to commence a review of the way in which 
the Council makes payments to the care home sector

Decision Maker Cabinet

Decision Expected 5 Sep 2019 
Decision due date for Cabinet changed from 20/06/2019 to 

Page 76

Agenda Item 8



APPENDIX B

5

05/09/2019.  Reason: to allow alignment to the Council 
budget processes

Key Decision Criteria Financial Yes Community 
Impact

Yes

Exempt Report Open

Wards Affected All Wards

Scrutiny Committee Area Adult Social Care

Persons/Organisations to be 
Consulted 

Officers and key stakeholders

Method(s) of Consultation Consultation has taken place via meetings and 
benchmarking approach with other local authorities. 
Following the decision there will be further wider 
engagement with the sector to inform a final report for 
Cabinet.

List of Background Documents 
to be Considered by Decision-
maker

Adult Social Care - Residential & Nursing Care Sector

Contact Officer(s) details Neil Watson neil.watson@sefton.gov.uk Tel: 0151 934 3744

SEFTON METROPOLITAN BOROUGH COUNCIL 
FORWARD PLAN

Details of Decision to be taken Community Substance Use: Assessment, Treatment 
and Recovery Service  
To give consideration to: (1) combining current extension 
options and exercising 2-year extension; and (2) re-procure 
service

Decision Maker Cabinet

Decision Expected 5 Sep 2019 

Key Decision Criteria Financial Yes Community 
Impact

Yes

Exempt Report Open

Page 77

Agenda Item 8



APPENDIX B

6

Wards Affected All Wards

Scrutiny Committee Area Adult Social Care

Persons/Organisations to be 
Consulted 

Service providers and key partners

Method(s) of Consultation Meetings and Emails

List of Background Documents 
to be Considered by Decision-
maker

Community Substance Use: Assessment, Treatment and 
Recovery Service

Contact Officer(s) details Alan McGee alan.mcgee@sefton.gov.uk

SEFTON METROPOLITAN BOROUGH COUNCIL 
FORWARD PLAN

Details of Decision to be taken New Directions Contract  
To seek approval on the terms of the extension to the New 
Directions contract and to update Cabinet on joint working 
with New Directions to review services.

Decision Maker Cabinet

Decision Expected 5 Sep 2019 

Key Decision Criteria Financial Yes Community 
Impact

Yes

Exempt Report Open

Wards Affected All Wards

Scrutiny Committee Area Adult Social Care

Persons/Organisations to be 
Consulted 

Consultation has taken place with Senior Officers, the 
Cabinet Member - Adult Social Care and Senior 
Management within New Directions.

Method(s) of Consultation Consultation has taken place via internal/external meetings, 
Cabinet Member briefings and workshops.

List of Background Documents 
to be Considered by Decision-
maker

New Directions Contract

Page 78

Agenda Item 8



APPENDIX B

7

Contact Officer(s) details Neil Watson neil.watson@sefton.gov.uk Tel: 0151 934 3744

SEFTON METROPOLITAN BOROUGH COUNCIL 
FORWARD PLAN

Details of Decision to be taken Section 75 Agreement  
A report to present a refreshed Section 75 Agreement to 
Cabinet for approval. The document is the legal agreement 
required for pooled budget arrangements between the 
Council and Clinical Commissioning Groups.

Decision Maker Cabinet

Decision Expected 3 Oct 2019 

Key Decision Criteria Financial Yes Community 
Impact

Yes

Exempt Report Open

Wards Affected All Wards

Scrutiny Committee Area Adult Social Care

Persons/Organisations to be 
Consulted 

Director of Adult Social Care; Director of Children's Social 
Care and Education; Head of Corporate Resources; Chief 
Legal and Democratic Officer; Head of Strategic Support; 
CCG Director of Place; CCG Commissioner for Urgent Care; 
CCG CAMHs Commissioner; and Service Manager for 
Community Equipment.

Method(s) of Consultation The draft has been agreed through a working party reporting 
to the Health and Wellbeing Board Executive.

List of Background Documents 
to be Considered by Decision-
maker

Section 75 Agreement

Contact Officer(s) details Eleanor Moulton eleanor.moulton@sefton.gov.uk

SEFTON METROPOLITAN BOROUGH COUNCIL 
FORWARD PLAN

Page 79

Agenda Item 8



APPENDIX B

8

Details of Decision to be taken The Health and Wellbeing Strategy 2020-2025  
Presentation of the proposed Health and Wellbeing Strategy 
for Sefton covering 2020 - 2025. The Director of Public 
Health will present this to full Council for its approval.

Decision Maker Cabinet

Council

Decision Expected 5 Dec 2019

23 Jan 2020 

Key Decision Criteria Financial No Community 
Impact

Yes

Exempt Report Open

Wards Affected All Wards

Scrutiny Committee Area Adult Social Care

Persons/Organisations to be 
Consulted 

Officers, Members, Service user groups, Public and 
Stakeholders

Method(s) of Consultation Full public consultation June to September 2019

List of Background Documents 
to be Considered by Decision-
maker

The Health and Wellbeing Strategy 2020-2025

Contact Officer(s) details Eleanor Moulton eleanor.moulton@sefton.gov.uk

Page 80

Agenda Item 8


	Agenda
	3 Minutes of the Previous Meeting
	4 Southport and Ormskirk Hospital NHS Trust
	Sefton OS Sept 19

	5 Sefton Clinical Commissioning Groups - Update Report
	6 Sefton Clinical Commissioning Groups - Health Provider Performance Dashboard
	7 Cabinet Member Reports
	Appendix A_Adult Social Care - August 2019
	Appendix B_Health and Wellbeing - August 2019

	8 Work Programme Key Decision Forward Plan
	AppendixAWorkProg
	Appendix B_KDFP


